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It is my privilege to present ChesCo’s annual report for the fiscal 
year 2080/081, showcasing our achievements and outlining our 
vision as we continue to live up to our motto, “Building the Nation.” 
This year has been pivotal in strengthening our role as a leader in 
infrastructure consultancy, expanding beyond hydropower into 
diverse infrastructure sectors.

This year, ChesCo achieved remarkable growth, successfully 
completing 12 projects and securing 11 new contracts. Among 
our key accomplishments was the completion of construction 
supervision of the Sanjen Hydropower Project, which is now 
connected to the national grid. 

Our teams have been actively deployed across project sites to 
carry out comprehensive surveys and data collection in areas 
such as geology, hydrology, and environmental studies. This 
groundwork has enabled us to advance feasibility studies, 
environmental assessments, and technical designs for various 
hydropower and other infrastructure projects. Furthermore, we 
maintained momentum in providing supervision services for 
ongoing construction projects and transmission line initiatives.

Innovation remains at the core of ChesCo’s operations. The 
acquisition and deployment of a LiDAR-based drone have greatly 
enhanced the accuracy and efficiency of our surveying capabilities. 
Additionally, our knowledge-sharing initiative, ChesCo RoKS 
(Roundtable on Knowledge Sharing), successfully conducted four 
training programs this year, receiving overwhelmingly positive 
feedback. These initiatives reflect our commitment to fostering 
continuous learning and capacity building across the industry. We 
aim to amplify this impact by offering targeted training programs 
for governmental, private-sector, and banking professionals in 
renewable energy and technical domains.

As we move forward, we have set ambitious plans to diversify 
our footprint beyond the hydropower sector into broader 
infrastructure domains. Our priorities include forging international 
partnerships for Operation and Maintenance (O&M) services, 
advancing digital transformation in our daily operations, and 
acquiring advanced design software to strengthen our technical 
capabilities. Additionally, we aim to issue our IPO within the next 
fiscal year, reflecting our commitment to sustainable growth. 

ChesCo’s strength lies in its collaborative relationships with 
clients, partners, and stakeholders. Over the years, we have 
cultivated strong professional ties with institutions such as 
Nepal Electricity Authority, Chilime Hydropower Company, and 
various financial organizations, among others. I am confident that 

these partnerships will continue to grow stronger, enabling us to 
contribute more meaningfully to the nation’s development.

Finally, I would like to extend my heartfelt gratitude to the ChesCo 
team, whose hard work and professionalism drive our success, as 
well as to our clients and stakeholders for their trust and support. 
Together, we remain committed to building a more sustainable, 
innovative, and resilient future for Nepal.

Warm regards, 
Subhash Kumar Mishra 
Chairperson, ChesCo

Message From the Chairperson 
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CHILIME ENGINEERING AND SERVICES COMPANY LTD.

MESSAGE FROM THE CEO

This year has been truly remarkable for ChesCo, marked by 
significant growth and progress as we continue to establish 
ourselves as a leading force in infrastructure development. 
Our success is not only reflected in the successful execution of 
projects but also in our contribution to building the nation. I 
am proud to be a part of the bigger movement i.e., propelling 
the nation towards achieving sustainable development goals 
(SDGs), particularly in making affordable and clean energy 
accessible to all.

We continue to diversify our portfolio and maintain a steady 
growth in terms of financial performance. While hydropower 

projects remain a significant portion of our portfolio, we have 
expanded our focus to include transmission line projects. 
These initiatives are crucial to addressing the transmission 
bottleneck that has long been a major obstacle in Nepal's 
energy sector. Additionally, we have harnessed cutting-edge 
LiDAR technology in our surveying efforts for transmission line 
projects, enhancing the precision and efficiency of our work.

Since our modest beginnings in 2016 (2073 B.S.), ChesCo has 
evolved into a thriving organization, rich not only in numbers 
but also in talent and creativity. Our success is built on three 
foundational pillars: 'People,' 'Value,' and 'Quality.' Above all, 
the strength of our people is what drives our achievements. 
This pillar includes our dedicated employees, esteemed 
clients, trusted partners, and stakeholders. We are committed 
to building capacity within our team and contributing to the 
retention of Nepal’s brightest talents. At ChesCo, we recognize 
the need of reversing the trend of brain drain, and we offer a 
platform for growth, learning, and professional development 
to help nurture the workforce which will be pivotal in the long-
term development of our country’s infrastructure. 

As we navigate the challenges and opportunities that lie 
ahead, I am confident that ChesCo's foundation of excellence, 
innovation, and collaboration will continue to guide us toward 
even greater achievements. Thank you for being part of our 
remarkable journey.

Warm Regards,

Prajesh Bikram Thapa
CEO

          We continue to diversify our 
portfolio and maintain a steady 
growth in terms of financial 
performance. While hydropower 
projects remain a significant portion 
of our portfolio, we have expanded 
our focus to include transmission 
line projects.
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CORPORATE OVERVIEW

About ChesCo
ChesCo (Chilime Engineering and Services Company Ltd.) was estab-

lished with a focused mission: to deliver excellence in project man-

agement, investigation, planning, feasibility studies, detailed design, 

construction supervision, environmental assessments, testing, operation 

and maintenance, and rehabilitation services for hydropower and other 

infrastructure projects. We are dedicated to addressing the diverse 

requirements of our esteemed clients.

Founded in 2016, ChesCo is a wholly owned subsidiary of Chilime 

Hydropower Company Limited (Chilime), a prominent player in Nepal's 

hydropower sector since its beginning in 1995. Chilime, majority-owned 

COMPANY’S NAME Chilime Engineering and Services Company Limited

ADDRESS Maharajgunj, Ring Road, Kathmandu Nepal

YEAR OF ESTABLISHMENT 27th September, 2016 (2073.06.11 B.S.)

REGISTRATION NO 156628/073/074

PAN/VAT 604332882

TELEPHONE NO +977-1-4016276, 4016286

WEBSITE www.chesco.com.np

by the Nepal Electricity Authority (NEA) with a 51% stake, operates the 

22.1 MW Chilime Hydropower Plant and oversees four other subsidiar-

ies: Rasuwagadhi Hydropower Company Limited, Madhya Bhotekoshi 

Jalavidhyut Company Limited, Sanjen Jalavidhyut Company Limited, and 

Chilime Seti Hydropower Company.

In just a short span of eight years, ChesCo has made an indelible mark 

in the market. This remarkable growth has been made possible through 

the concerted efforts of our dedicated in-house team and the invaluable 

expertise of our seasoned panel of experts. At ChesCo, we view every 

project as an opportunity to make a meaningful impact, and we are 

dedicated to consistently exceeding expectations. 
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CHILIME ENGINEERING AND SERVICES COMPANY LTD.

VISION 
 

To be the leader in quality engineering 

and consulting services of hydropower 

and infrastructure works for the 

sustainable development in building 

the nation and beyond.   

VALUES
 

  Integrity 

  Excellence

  Stakeholder’s Satisfaction

  Team Spirit

  Social Responsibility

MISSION
 

To be a one-stop complete 

value chain engineering 

consultancy service provider 

with multi-disciplinary team of 

specialists to deliver high-quality, 

cost-effective, and timely services 

for the sustainable development 

of hydropower and infrastructure 

works driven by integrity, excellence, 

collaborations, and stakeholders’ 

satisfaction. 

THREE PILLARS OF CHESCO

Integrity

Professionalism 

Ethics

V
A
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Team

Customers

Partners
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Standards 

 Customer  

Satisfaction 

Continuous  

Improvement
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  Due Diligence
  Advisory Services 
  Technology Transfer 
  Bid Documents and 

Contract Management

  Initial Environmental 
Examination

  Environmental Impact 
Assessment

  Monitoring and Evaluation 

SECTORS

  Hydropower
  Transmission 
  Distribution
  Renewable Energy 

  Buildings
  Transportation
  Waterways

ENERGY

ENVIRONMENT

INFRASTRUCTURE

BUSINESS CONSULTANCY
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CHILIME ENGINEERING AND SERVICES COMPANY LTD.

SERVICES

SERVICES

PLANNING AND 
ANALYSIS

ENGINEERING 
AND DESIGN

OPERATION 
AND ASSET 

MANAGEMENT•	 Project Identification and Planning
•	 Feasibility Study
•	 Environmental Studies 
•	 Technical Advisory Services
•	 Investigation Works

•	 Project Management and Supervision
•	 Preparation of Bid Documents
•	 Contract Management 
•	 Testing and Commissioning

•	 Detailed Engineering 
•	 Civil, Electro-mechanical, 

and Hydro-mechanical and 
Transmission Line Design

•	 Building & Infrastructure

•	 Operation and Maintenance 
•	 Rehabilitation and 

Modernization Works 
•	 Asset management

MANAGEMENT 
AND CONTRACTS
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cfb/0fLo z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?, 

o; lrlnd] OlGhlgol/Ë P08 ;le{;]h sDkgL lnld6]8sf] 
cf7f}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf k|ltlglwTj u/L pkl:yt x'g' 
ePsf z]o/wgL ;+:yfsf k|ltlglw, ;~rfns ;ldltsf 
;b:ox?, n]vfk/LIfs, cGo cfdlGqt JolQmTjx?, sDkgLsf 
sd{rf/Lx? / o; ;efdf pkl:yt ;Dk"0f{ dxfg'efjx?nfO{ 
sDkgLsf] ;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6 xflb{s :jfut ub}{ 
o; ul/dfdo ;efdf sDkgLsf] cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷)*! sf] 
jflif{s k|ltj]bg / ;f]xL cjlwsf] n]vfk/LIf0f ePsf ljQLo 
ljj/0fx? k|:t't ub{5' . 

!= sDkgLsf] ;+lIfKt ljj/0fM 
of] sDkgL ldlt @)&# ;fn cflZjg !! ut] sDkgL P]g, 
@)^# adf]lhd sDkgL /lhi6«f/sf] sfof{nodf klAns lnld6]8 
sDkgLsf] ?kdf ljlwjt btf{ eO{ :yfkgf ePsf] xf] . lrlnd] 
hnljB't sDkgL ln sf] k"0f{ :jfldTj /x]sf] o; sDkgLsf] 
/lhi68{ sfof{no sf7df8f+} dxfgu/kflnsf j8f g+= $, 
dxf/fhu~hdf  /x]sf] 5 . ljsf; lgdf{0f sfo{df cTofjZos 

jflif{s k|ltj]bg 
kg]{ O{lGhlgol/Ë ;]jf k|bfg ub]{{ cfof]hgfx?sf] ;+efJotf cWoog 
ug]{, l8hfOg ug]{, lgdf{0f ;'kl/j]If0f ug]{, ;~rfng ;+ef/ ug]{, 
Joj:yfkg k/fdz{ ;]jf pknAw u/fpg] cflb p2]Zosf ;fy o; 
sDkgLsf] :yfkgf ePsf] xf] . 5f]6f] ;dodf g} of] Ps Joj;flos 
sDkgLsf ?kdf :yflkt x'g ;kmn ePsf] 5 .

o; sDkgLn] ljleGg If]qx? ljz]if u/L d'n'ssf] pmhf{ pTkfbg 
tyf Joj:yfkg If]qdf O{lGhlgol/Ë ;]jf pknAw u/fpFb} cfPsf] 
5 . csf]{tkm{, g]kfnL hgzlQmx? dfkm{t g} O{lGhlgol/Ë ;]jf 
k|bfg ul/g] x'Fbf b]z leq bIf hgzlQmsf] ljsf; s|lds?kdf 
x'g u} dxFuf ljb]zL O{lGhlgol/Ë ;]jf k|bfossf] ;+nUgtfdf sdL 
cfpg] 5 . o;n] b]zsf] k"FhL artdf dxTjk"0f{ ;xof]u ug]{ 5 . 

sDkgLåf/f cf=j @)*)÷*! df eP u/]sf d'Vo–d'Vo sfo{x? 
cg';'lr–! Dff ;+nUg ul/Psf] 5 eg] sDkgLåf/f xfn;Dd ;DkGg 
ul/Psf sfo{x? cg';'lr–@ lbOPsf] 5 . 

!=! z]o/ k'FhL 
o; sDkgLsf] clws[t kF"hL ?= !@ s/f]8, hf/L kF"hL ?= !! s/f]8 
() nfv / r'Qmf kF"hL * s/f]8 (@ nfv %) xhf/ /x]sf] 5 . 

!=@ sDkgLsf] cfo tyf Aoosf] ljj/0fM -xhf/df_

ljj/0f cf=j= @)*)÷)*! cf=j= @)&(÷)*) km/s km/s k|ltzt

k/fdz{ ;]jfaf6 cfDbfgL 147,626 154,553 -6,927_ -4=48_

Aofh cfDbfgL 9,030 5,612 3,418 60=91

cGo cfDbfgL 302 4 298 7450

hDdf cfDbfgL 156,959 160,169 (3,210) (2)
k|ToIf vr{ 77,529 89,523 -11,994_ -13=39_

ck|ToIf vr{ 34,819 27,813 7,006 25=19

x|f; vr{ 2,820 2,976 -156 -5=24_

hDDff vr{ 115,168 120,312 (5144 (4.27)
af]g; cl3sf] gfkmf 41,791 39,857 1,934 4=+85

af]g; 2,090 3,986 -1,896_ -47=57_

s/ cufl8sf] gfkmf 39,701 35,871 3,830 10=67

s/ 9,926 9,014 912 10=12

s/ k5fl8sf] gfkmf 29,775 26,857 2,918 10=86
 		   

;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6 ;ftf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf cWoIfn] k|:t't ug'{ x'g]  cf=j= @)*)÷)*! sf] 

l	 ljut cf=j sf ljleGg cfof]hgfx?sf] k/fdz{ ;]jfnfO{ lg/Gt/tf lb+b} yk s]xL gofF cfof]hgfx?df k/fdz{ ;]jf ;DaGwL sfdx? u/]sf] x'Fbf ut cf=j sf] t'ngfdf k/fdz{ ;]jfaf6  
k|fKt cfDbfgL $=$*Ü n]  36]sf], ;du| vr{df sdL ePsf] / Aofh cfDbfgLdf tyf cGo cfDbfgL a9f]Q/L ePsf] sf/0fn] sDkgLsf] v'b gfkmf !)=*^Ü n] a[l4 ePsf] 5 .  

l	 ut cfly{s jif{sf] t'ngfdf o; cf=j=df $=@&Ü n] vr{df sdL cfPsf]] 5 .  
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TfflnsfM ! ;DklQ bfloTj ljj/0f -? xhf/df_

ljj/0f o; jif{sf] -@)*)÷)*!_ Uft jif{sf] -@)&(÷)*)_ 

k"FhL / bfloTj

z]o/ k"FhL *(@,@%) %$,)()  

;l~rt d"gfkmf   !#(,$#) !)(,^%%

Rffn" bfloTj #,$)*             &,(&*

Joj:yfx? l8km8{ s/ ;d]t    $,!*!   ^$,%%

hDdf bfloTj   @#^,@^(  !&*,!&*

;DklQ 

v'b l:y/ ;DklQ   !*,&#&  !$,(#(

gub tyf a}+s df}Hbft  !$$,&(#           !)*,%*&

clu|d e'QmfgL, k]ZsL, ;fk6L tyf w/f}l6  &@,&#(   %$,^%@

hDdf  @#^,@^(   !&*,!&*
 		   

 @= sDkgLsf] ultljlwx? tyf efjL of]hgfM 

@=!  cfj @)*)÷*! sf] ultljlwM 
xfn cWoogsf nflu cufl8 a9fOPsf ljleGg hnljB't tyf 
cGo k"jf{wf/sf cfof]hgfx?sf] cfof]hgf :yndf r/0fa4 ?kdf 
k|fljlwsx? kl/rfng u/L ;e]{, lhof]nf]hL, xfO8«f]nf]hL nufotsf 
tYofÍx? ;+sng u/L ;DefAotf cWoog, jftfj/0fLo cWoog 
tyf cGo k|fljlws cWoogsf ultljlwx? ePsf lyP . ;fy}  
;f~h]g hnljB't sDkgL ln cGt{utsf cfof]hgfx?, tfdfsf]zL 
kfFr, g]=lj=k|f= n}grf}/ tyf eujfgkfpsf] ejg -BPICP_ uN5L – 
/ftdf6] k|;f/0f nfO{g nufotsf cGo s]xL cfof]hgfx?;+u lgdf{0f 
;'kl/j]If0f nufotsf k/fdz{ ;]jfsf] sfo{ hf/L /x]sf] lyof] .

@=!=! pks/0f vl/bM
sDkgLnfO{ cfjZos kg]{ pks/0fx? sDkgLn] cjnDjg u/]sf] 
cfly{s k|zf;g ljlgodfjnL cg';f/ ;fdfgx? vl/b ePsf] lyof] .  

@=!=@= hgzlQmsf] bIftf clea[l4 M  
n	 sd{rf/Lx?sf] bIftf/Ifdtf clea[l4 ug]{ pb]Zon] ljleGg 

tflnd tyf ;]ldgf/df ;xefuL u/fOPsf]
n	 sDkgLsf] sfof{nodf lgoldt ?kdf ljleGg laifodf ljifo1ftf 

dfkm{t ;~rfng ul/b}+ cfPsf] Friday RoKS (Round table on 

Knowledge Sharing) gfds Knowledge Sharing sfo{qmdnfO{ 
lg/Gt/tf lbOPsf] lyof] . ;fy} ChesCo RoKS gfds sfo{s|d 

dfkm{t ljleGg tflnd, workshop tyf ;]ldgf/ cfof]hgf 
ul/Psf] .

n	 ;e{] sfo{df cTofw'lgs k|ljlw leqfpg] s|ddf LiDAR Based 

Drone vl/b ul/ pkof]u ul/Psf] .

@=@= efjL of]hgfM  
n	 sDkgLsf] Business Expansion tyf Diversification ub{} 

n}hfg] s|ddf Hydro Sector afx]s cGo Infrastructure 

Sector df sDkgLsf] blx|nf] pkl:ylt u/fpg] . 
n	 Hydropower Plant sf] O&M Services sf] nflu ljleGg 

cGt/f{li6«o sDkgLx?;Fu ;xsfo{ ug]{  . lrlnd] xfO8«f]kfj/ 
sDkgLåf/f k|jl4{t cfof]hgfx?sf] O&M Services pknAw 
u/fpg kxn ug]{] .

n	 sDkgLsf] b}lgs sfo{ ;~rfngnfO{ ;do ;fk]If tl/sfn] 
Digital Transformation ug]{ .  

n	 cfjZostf cg';f/ Design Software x? vl/b ug]{ .
n	 sd{rf/Lsf] Ifdtf j[låsf] nflu Need based Training tyf 

Seminar ;xefuL u/fpg] sfo{nfO{ lg/Gt/tf lbg] .
n	 sDkgLsf] IPO lgisfzg sfo{ cufl8 a9fpg] s|ddf lwtf]kq 

af]8{df cfj]bg lbO{;s]sf] / cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@ leq pQm 
sfo{ ;DkGg ug{] . 

n	 sDkgLsf] cfkm\g} skf]{/]6 ejg lgdf{0fsf] nflu hUuf v/Lb 
k|s[of cf=j=@)*!÷*@ Dff k'gM z'? ug{] 

n	 Geological tyf Geotechnical Investigation sf] nflu 
cfjZos yk pks/0f tyf cf}hf/x? vl/b ub{} n}hfg] . 
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n	 Transmission Line ;DalGw cWoog / ;'kl/j]If0fsf] 
sfdnfO{ k|fyldstfsf ;fy cufl8 a9fpb} n}hfg] s|ddf 
NEA, /fli6«o k|;f/0f lu|8 sDkgL lnld6]8 (RPGCL) 
nufot;+u cfk;L ;xsfo{sf] nflu kxn ug]{ . 

n	 cfw'lgs k|ljlwx? -h:t} M LiDAR, GIS / cGo l8lh6n 
6'N;_ k|of]u u/]/ lj:t[t cWoog / l8hfOg ;]jf ;'wf/ 
ug{] . 

n	 ljleGg ;/sf/L tyf lghL If]qsf sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ nlIft 
u/L Jofj;flos / k|fljlws k|lzIf0f sfo{x?sf] ljsf; 
ug{] . 

n	 hnljB't, ;f}o{ pmhf{ / cGo k|fljlws ljifodf a}Flsª 
tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx?sf sd{rf/Lx?sf nflu ljz]if 
k|lzIf0f ug{] . 

n	 gjLgtd cGt/f{li6«o cEof;x?sf] cWoog u/L g]kfndf 
nfu' ug{ ;lsg] pkfox? Kflxrfg ug{ . 

n	 ;+:yfut ;Djw{g / ;+/If0fsf] ;jfndf sDkgLnfO{ 
kmfObf k'¥ofpg] SCAEF h:tf ;+:yfx?;Fusf] ;xsfo{nfO{ 
dha't agfpg] .

n	 lb3{sfnLg of]hgfx?df nufgLstf{nfO{ ;xof]u ug{] .
n	 Drone k|ljlw nufot ;do;fk]If lx;fjn] cfl6{lkml;on 

OG6]lnh]G; AI / d]l;g nlg{ªsf] k|of]u u/]/ k/fdz{ ;]jf 
yk k|efjsf/L agfpg] .

#= sDkgLsf] Joj;flos ;DaGw M 
ljleGg ;+:yfx?;+u sDkgLsf] Joj;flos ;DaGw ;'dw'/ /x]sf] 5 . 
o; sDkgL;+u k|ToIf tyf ck|ToIf ;DaGw /fVg] cGo ;+:yfx? 
h:t} sDkgL /lhi6«f/sf] sfof{no, lrlnd] hnljB't sDkgL ln=, 
;fGh]g hnljB't sDkgL ln=,g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0f tfdfsf]zL 
kfFr xfO8«f]On]lS6«s cfof]hgf, dWo ef]6]sf]zL hnljB't sDkgL 
ln=, nufot ljleGg cfof]hgfx? xfO{8«f]Nofa, ;flgdf a}+s ln=, 
d'lQmgfy ljsf; a}s ln=, s'df/L a}s ln= nufot ljleGg 
ljlQo ;+:yfx?;+u sDkgLsf] ;'dw'/ ;DaGw /x]sf] 5 . sDkgLn] 
gfk hFfr kl/If0f ug]{÷u/fpg] ljleGg k|of]uzfnf sDkgL;Fusf] 
;DaGw  ;d]t  ;'dw'/ /x]sf] 5 . eljiodf klg of] ;DaGw cem 
;'b[9 tyf lj:tf/ eO{ kf/:kl/s ;xof]u cfbfg k|bfgdf a[l4 
x'g]df d ljZj:t /x]sf] 5' .  

$= ;~rfns ;ldlt M 
sDkgLsf] Ps dfq ;+:yfks z]o/wgL lrlnd] hnljB't sDkgL 
ln= sf] tkm{af6 $ hgf ;~rfnsx? åf/f  o; sDkgLsf] 
;~rfns ;ldltdf k|ltlglwTj eO{/x]sf] 5 . sDkgLsf] 

k|aGwkqdf % -kfFr_ hgf ;~rfns /xg] Joa:yf ePtfklg 
;Dk"0f{ z]o/ lgisf;g eO{ z]o/ /sd r'Qmf eP kZrft\ dfq 
;~rfns ;ldltn] k"0f{tf kfpg] 5 .    

cf=j= @)*)÷)*! df ;~rfns ;ldlt lgDgfg';f/ /x]sf] lyof]M 

qm=;+= ;~rfnsx? kb ;~rfnsdf x]/km]/  
ePsf] ljj/0f 

!= >L ;'efif 
s'df/ ld> 

cWoIf lrlnd] hnljB't sDkgLsf] 
tkm{af6 @)&^ df3 ^ ut] b]lv 
;~rfns tyf @)&& kf}if )@ 
ut]b]lv xfn;Dd cWoIf 

@= >L zflGt 
nIdL zfSo

;b:o lrlnd] hnljB't sDkgLsf] 
tkm{af6 ldlt @)*)÷!)÷@( 
ut]b]lv xfn;Dd .

#= >L gf/fo0f 
k|;fb cfrfo{ 

;b:o lrlnd] hnljB't sDkgLsf] 
tkm{af6 ldlt @)&#÷)&÷@& 
ut]b]lv xfn;Dd . 

$= 8f= k|zfGt 
d08n

;b:o lrlnd] hnljB't sDkgLsf] 
tkm{af6 ldlt @)&#÷)&÷@& 
ut]b]lv xfn;Dd .

cf=j= @)*)÷)*! df ;~rfns ;ldltsf] j}7s hDdf !& 
k6s a;]sf] lyof] . 

%= n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bg pk/ ;~rfns 
;ldltsf] k|ltlqmof M  
n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bgdf ;~rfns ;ldltsf] s'g} s}lkmot 
b]lvPsf] 5}g .

^= ;+:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj M 
o; sDkgLn] pko'St ;dodf ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj ;DalGw 
sfo{x? ug{] 5 eGg] s'/fsf] ljZjf; lbnfpFb5' .
 

&= ;Da4 sDkgL jLrsf] sf/f]jf/M
o; sDkgLsf] Psdfq ;+:yfks z]o/wgL >L lrlnd] 
hnljB't sDkgL ln=af6 z]o/ nufgL ePsf]  / cGo 
sDkgL;Fu ;Demf}tf cg';f/ lgDglnlvt sf/f]jf/ dfq 
ePsf] Joxf]/f cg'/f]w ub{5' .  
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;Da4 sDkgL / 
;+:yf 

sf/f]jf/sf] lsl;d  
cf=j= )*)÷)*! 
sf]  sf/f]jf/ /sd 
?= 

lrlnd] hnljB't 
sDkgL ln= 

k/fdz{ ;]jf 
;DaGwL 

39,115,091

xfn ;Ddsf] z]o/ 
k"FhL 

8,92,50,000

cGo 
-;jf/L ef8f, / 
sd{rf/L ;DalGw_  

74,44,281.01

;fGh]g hnljB't 
sDkgL ln= 

k/fdz{ ;]jf 
;DaGwL 

34,139,133 

dWo ef]6]sf]zL 
hnljB't sDkgL 
ln= 

k/fdz{ ;]jf 
;DaGwL 

1,976,401

 		   

*= cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLM 
sDkgLsf] cfkm\g} sd{rf/L k|zf;g ljlgodfjnL nfu" 
eO;s]sf] 5 . sDkgLsf] cfly{s k|zf;g ljlgodfjnL 
;~rfns ;ldltaf6:jLs[t e} nfu" ;d]t e} ;s]sf] 5 .  
b}lgs tyf e|d0f eQf ljlgodfjnL lgdf0f{ ug]{ sfo{ clGtd 
r/0fdf /x]sf] 5 . oL ljlgofdfjnL tof/ gx'Gh]n lrlnd] 
hnljB't sDkgL ln= df k|of]udf /x]sf ljlgodfjnLx? g} 
k|of]u ug]{ u/L ;~rfns ;ldltaf6 lg0f{o eP cg';f/ g} 
b}lgs e|d0f eQf ;DaGwL sfdx?nfO{ Jojl:yt / lgoldt 
ul/Psf] 5 . o;sf] cltl/Qm sDkgLn] kl/kfngf ug'{ kg]{ 
egL sfg"gn] ;'emfPsf P]g lgodx?sf] klg k"0f{ ?kdf kfngf 
ul/Psf] 5 .

(= cf=j= @)*)÷)*! sf] s'n Joa:yfkg vr{M 
o; sDkgL ;~rfngdf cfPsf] cf7f}+ jif{ k"/f eO{;s]sf] 
x'Fbf o; sDkgLsf] Joj:yfkg vr{df a[l¢ b]lvPsf] 5 . 
s]Gb|Lo sfof{no / ljleGg cfof]hgfdf sfo{/t sd{rf/Lx?sf] 
vr{ tyf sfof{no ;~rfngsf nflu cfjZos cGo vr{nfO{ 
Joj:yfkg vr{ dflgPsf] 5 . cf=j=@)*)÷)*! sf]  s'n 
Joj:yfkg vr{ ?= # s/f]8 $* nfv !( xhf/ /x]sf] 5 .    

!)= ;~rfns tyf pRr kb:y kbflwsf/Lsf] 
kfl/>ldsM 
cf=j= @)*)÷)*! df sDkgLsf] kbflwsf/Lx?s ;~rfns 
;ldltsf] ;b:ox?sf] k|lt a}7s k|lt JolQm eQf ?=$%))÷– 

;~rfns /x]sf] pk–;ldltsf] a}7s eQf k|ltJolQm k|lt a}7s 
?=@,%))÷– ;~rfnsx?sf] ;~rf/ tyf oftfoft ;'ljwf 
jfkt k|ltJolQm dfl;s ?= @,%))÷– /x]sf] 5 . ;fy} k|d'v 
sfo{sf/L clws[tsf] jflif{s tna, eQf tyf cGo ;'ljwf  
?= #!,#*,!(&÷%^ /x]sf] 5 .      

!!= n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt M  

sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf !^$ df ePsf] Joj:yf adf]lhd 
lgDgfg';f/ ;b:o /x]sf] n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt u7g ePsf] 5 . 

>L gf/fo0f k|;fb cfrfo{  – ;+of]hs 
8f= k|zfGt d08n –  ;b:o 

cf=j= @)*)÷)*! df n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf] a}7s !) k6s 
a;]sf] lyof] . pQm ;ldltsf] eQf k|lt a}7s hgxL  ?=@,%))÷– 
/x]sf] 5 .

!@= a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx?af6 lnPsf] C0f tyf 
a'emfpg afFsL /x]sf] ;fFjf tyf Jofhsf] /sdM      
xfn;Dd o; sDkgLn] s'g} klg a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx?af6 
C0f lnPsf] 5}g . 

!#= sDkgLn] e'QmfgL lng'kg{] jf sDkgLn] cGo 
JolQmnfO{ e'QmfgL ug'{ kg{] egL bfaL ul/Psf] 
/sd jf o; ljifodf d'2f dfldnf rln/x]sf] eP 
To;sf] ljj/0fM 
pNn]lvt ljifodf s'g} klg bfloTj gePsf] . 

!$= sDkgLsf] ;ftf}++ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf 
k|fKt lh1f;f tyf ;'emfjx? M 
>L ;'hg pk|]tL  
;+:yfks sDkgLsf k|ltlglw >L ;'hg pk|]ltn] ;~rfns 
;ldltsf cWoIfaf6 k|:t't ug'{ ePsf k|lta]bg pk/ 
;xdlt hgfpg' eof] . ;fy} cfufdL lbgdf sDkgLn] cem 
/fd|f] ug]{ s'/fdf ljZj:t 5' eGb} sDkgLsf] pQ/f]pQ/ 
k|ultsf] sfdgf ub]{ cfkm\gf] 5f]6f] egfO{ /fVg'eof] . 

!%= sd{rf/L Joj:yfkg tyf sd{rf/Lsf] ;+VofM 
o; sDkgLsf] :jLs[t b/jGbL tyf cfof]hgfsf] cfjZostf 
cg';f/ sd{rf/L Joj:yfkg ul/b} cfPsf] 5 . sDkgLsf] 
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ljlgodfjnL tyf k|rlnt >d P]gsf] clwgdf /xL pkbfg, 
ljbf, cf}iflw pkrf/ tyf b'3{6gf aLDffsf] Joj:yf ul/Psf] 
5 . sd{rf/Lx?sf] tna nufotsf ;]jf ;'ljwf tf]Sg] ;Dk"0f{ 
clwsf/ ;~rfns ;ldltdf lglxt /x]sf] 5 . 

cf=j= @)*)÷)*! df s]Gb|Lo sfof{nodf sfo{/t sd{rf/L 
!* hgf, lrlnd] hnljB't sDkgL ln=af6 sfhdf cfPsf 
sd{rf/L ;+Vof * hgf, ;fGh]g hnljB't cfof]hgfdf 
sfo{/t sd{rf/L ;+Vof @@ hgf, a"9Lu08sL k|f]s hnljB't 
cfof]hgfdf–$, tfdfsf]zL kFfrf} hnljB't cfof]hgfdf–!, 
dWo ef]6]sf]zL hnljB't s+= ln= df –!, g]kfn ljB't 
k|flws/0f cfjf;Lo ejg -BPICP_ lgdf{0f cfof]hgfdf *, 
lrlnd] hnljB't s]Gb|df –! hgf u/L hDdf ̂ # hgf sd{rf/L 
sfo{/t /x]sf 5g\ . ;fy} Hofnfbf/Ldf * hgf sfo{/t /x]sf 
5g\ .    

!^=  sDkgLsf] Joj:yfkgdf sfo{/t tyf 
cGo :t/df sfo{/t ljb]zLx?sf] ;+Vof tyf 
lghx?nfO{  e'QmfgL ul/Psf] kfl/>lds, eQf 
tyf ;'ljwfM xfn;Dd o; sDkgLsf] Joj:yfkg 
:t/df s'g} klg ljb]zLx? sfo{/t 5}gg\ . 

sDkgL / s'g} ljb]zL lgsfo jf JolQmx?aLr nufgL, 
Joj:yfkg jf k|fljlws ;]jf jf cGo ljifodf Ps 
jif{eGbf a9L cjlwsf] nflu s'g} ;Demf}tf ul/Psf] 
eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f / ;DalGwt cfly{s jif{df To:tf] 
;Demf}tf cg';f/ e'Qmfg ul/Psf] nfef+z, sld;g, 
z'Ns, b:t'/ / /f]oN6L cflbsf] ljj/0fM  
of] k|ltj]bg tof/ ug]{ ;do;Dd sf]xL ljb]zL JolQm tyf 
;+:yf;+u cfly{s bfloTj x'g] u/L s'g}  ;Demf}tf ePsf] 5}g .

!*= z]o/wgLx?n] a'lemlng afFsL /x]sf] 
nfef+zsf] /sdM 
xfn;Dd o; sDkgLn] nfef+z 3f]if0ff gu/]sf] x'Fbf o; a'Fbfdf 
ePsf] Aoj:yf nfu" gx'g] . 

!(= sDkgLn] o; P]g tyf k|rlnt sfg"gsf] 
kfngf k"0f{ ?kdf u/]sf] 5 eGg] s'/fsf] 
pb\3f]if0fM 
o; sDkgLn] k|rlnt sfg"g adf]lhd l;h{gf x'g] ;Dk"0f{ zt{x? 
pRr ;ts{tfsf ;fy kl/kfng u/]sf] tYo o; ul/dfdo ;efdf 
pb\3f]if ub{5' .  

s[t1tf 1fkg tyf wGojfb, 
o; sDkgLsf] :yfkgf tyf ;~rfngdf ;xof]u / ;b\efj 
b]vfpb} cfpg' ePsf lrlnd] hnljB't sDkgL ln==, g]kfn 
ljB't k|flws/0f, ljleGg hnljB't cfof]hgfx?, ljleGg 
a}s tyf ljlQo ;+:yfx?, / k|ToIf jf ck|ToIf ?kn] ;xof]u 
k'¥ofpg' x'g] ljleGg ;~rf/ dfWodnfO{ wGojfb 1fkg ub{5'  / 
cfufdL lbgx?df klg lg/Gt/ ;xof]u kfpg] ck]Iff u/]sf] 5' . 

;fGh]g hnljB't sDkgL ln= cGt{utsf ;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ 
hnljB't cfof]hgf -!$=* d]ufjf6_ / ;fGh]g hnljB't 
cfof]hgf -$@=% d]ufjf6_ sf] k/fdz{bftfsf] lhDd]jf/L k|bfg 
ul/ lbg'ePsf]df ;fGh]g hnljB't sDkgL ln= nfO{ wGojfb 
1fkg ub{5' .  

cGTodf, sDkgLsf] ;kmn ;~rfngdf z'?jftL cj:yfb]lv 
xfn;Dd ;xof]u k'¥ofpg' x'g] ;~rfns ;ldltsf ;b:ox?, 
o; sDkgLdf sfo{/t ;Dk"0f{ sd{rf/Lx?, lrlnd] hnljB't 
sDkgL ln= tyf txfF sfo{/t sd{rf/Lx? Pj+ k|ltlglwx?k|lt 
xflb{s wGojfb JoQm ub{5'  . o; sDkgLsf] ljQLo Joj:yfkgdf 
;xof]u / ;b\efj /fVg] ljQLo ;+:yfx? k|lt klg wGojfb 
1fkg ub}{ cfufdL lbgx?df klg o;/L g} lg/Gt/ ;fy lbg'x'g] 
5 eGg] cfzf /fv]sf] 5' . 

wGojfb, 	 
cWoIf
lrlnd] O{lGhlgol/Ë P08 ;le{;]h sDkgL lnld6]8 dxf/fhu~h, 
sf7df8f}+ . 	  
ldlt M @)*!÷)*÷!! 
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cg';"rL–!					   
sDkgLåf/f ;DkGg ul/Psf sfo{x¿				  

qm=;+= cfof]hgf kl/of]hgf lasf;stf{ sfo{ s}lkmot

! r}gk'/ ;]tL hnljB't  
cfof]hgf  

g]kfn ljB't k|lws/0f ;DefAotf cWoog k|ltj]bgsf] ;ldIff 
/ cBfjlws 

;DkGg ePsf]

@ ;]tL km]jf hnljB't  
cfof]hgf  

g]kfn ljB't k|lws/0f cof]hgfsf] k'g:yf{kgf ;DkGg ePsf]

# lrlnd] hnljB't cfof]hgf  lrlnd] hnljB't sDkgL 
lnld6]8

cof]hgfsf] k'g:yf{kgf ;DkGg ePsf]

$ a]tg s0ff{nL hnljB't 
cfof]hgf

a]tg s0ff}nL ;Grostf{ 
hnljB't sDkgL lnld6]8

k|f/lDes jftfj/0fLo kl/If]0f -lgdf{0f 
kfj/_

;DkGg ePsf]

% a]tg s0ff{nL hnljB't 
cfof]hgf

a]tg s0ff{nL ;Grostf{ 
hnljB't sDkgL lnld6]8

k|;f/0f nfOgsf]  k|f/lDes jftfj/0fLo 
kl/If]0f

;DkGg ePsf]

^ lrlnd] hnljB't cfof]hgf lrlnd] hnljB't sDkgL 
lnld6]8

lhof]nf]lh / lhof]6]lShsn cWoog ;DkGg ePsf]

& tfdfsf]zL–% hnljB't 
cfof]hgf

tfdfsf]zL hnljB't sDkgL 
lnld6]8

lgdf{0f ko{j]If0f ;DkGg ePsf]

* sf7df8f}F–t/fO{ dw]z b|'t 
dfu{ ;8s cfof]hgf

g]kfn cfdL{ lhof]lkmlhsn / lhof]6]lShsn 
cWoog

;DkGg ePsf]

( a]tg s0ff{nL hnljB't 
cfof]hgf

a]tg s0ff}nL ;Grostf{ 
hnljB't sDkgL lnld6]8

k|;f/0f nfO{gsf] ;ldIff tyf 
cBfjlws sfo{

;DkGg ePsf]

!) s':df–nf]j/ sf]bL–Go' df]lb 
!#@ s]=le= k|;f/0f nfOg

g]kfn ljB't k|lws/0f k|f/lDes jftfj/0fLo kl/If0f ;DkGg ePsf]

!! s':df–nf]j/ sf]bL–Go' df]lb 
!#@ s]=le= k|;f/0f nfOg

g]kfn ljB't k|lws/0f ;+zf]lwt k|f/lDes jftfj/0fLo kl/If]0f ;DkGg ePsf]

!# k'jf vf]nf hnljB't cfof]hgf  g]kfn ljB't k|lws/0f l:nk Okm]S6 :68L ;DkGg ePsf]

!$ ;'Gb/Lhn ;fgf hnljB't 
cfof]hgf  

g]kfn ljB't k|lws/0f l/a OG:6n]zg ;kf]6{, l/a :yfkgf ;kf]6{ 
lalw tyf Aofslkmn l8hfOg / ;'kl/j]If0f

;DkGg ePsf]

!% ;]tL gbL–# hnljB't cfof]
hgf 

lrlnd] ;]tL hnljB't sDkgL 
lnld6]8

kfj/xfp; kx'Fr 6g]nsf] kl/If]0f 
Pl86 cGj]if0sf] nflu 6]G8/ sfuhft 
tyf /]vflrqsf] tof/L

;DkGg ePsf]

!^ :ofpn] ;fFkm]au/ !#@ 
s]=eL= k|;f/0f nfOg

g]kfn ljB't k|lws/0f lj:t[t ;DefAotf cWoog ;DkGg ePsf]

!& kfNkf @@) s]=eL= ;a:6]
zg -ljB't k|;f/0f nfOg 
cfof]hgf_

g]kfn ljB't k|lws/0f df6f] cg';Gwfg sfo{ ;DkGg ePsf]

!* g]kfn ljB't k|lws/0f 
cfjfl;o ejg

g]kfn ljB't k|lws/0f lgdf{0f ko{j]If0f ;DkGg ePsf]

!( uN5L–/ftfd6] @@) s]=eL= 
k|;f/0f nfOg cfof]hgf

g]kfn ljB't k|lws/0f, 
6«flGdzg l8/]S6f]/]6

df6f] cg';Gwfg sfo{ ;DkGg ePsf]

 @) klAns kx'Fr ;8s tyf 
klSs k'n

b'wsf]zL hnljB't sDkgL 
lnld6]8

l86]n l8hfO{g ;DkGg ePsf]
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cg';"rL–@	 					   
cf=j= @)*)÷)*! df ePsf sfo{x?							    

qm=;+= cfof]hgf kl/of]hgf lasf;stf{ sfo{ ;Demf}tf ldlt s}lkmot

! ;fGh]g hnljB't cfof]hgf  ;fGh]g hnljB't 
sDkgL lnld6]8

lgdf{0f ko{j]If0f 11-May-18 hf/L /x]sf]

@ ;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ hnljB't cfof]hgf  ;fGh]g hnljB't 
sDkgL lnld6]8

lgdf{0f ko{j]If0f hf/L /x]sf]

# a'l9 u08ls k|f]s hnljB't cfof]hgf  lrlnd] hnljB't 
sDkgL lnld6]8

;DefAotf cWoog 6-May-18 hf/L /x]sf]

$ a'l9 u08ls k|f]s–! hnljB't cfof]hgf  lrlnd] hnljB't sDkgL 
lnld6]8

;DefAotf cWoog hf/L /x]sf]

% ;]tL gbL–# hnljB't cfof]hgf  lrlnd] hnljB't 
sDkgL lnld6]8

;DefAotf cWoog 30-Jul-18 hf/L /x]sf]

^ r'Dr]t :of/ vf]nf hnljB't cfof]hgf  lrlnd] hnljB't 
sDkgL lnld6]8

;DefAotf cWoog 11-Mar-19 hf/L /x]sf]

& ah| dfbL hnljB't cfof]hgf hnljB't sDkgL 
lnld6]8

l86]n l8hfO{g 25-Dec-20 hf/L /x]sf]

* tfdfsf]zL–% hnljB't cfof]hgf tfdfsf]zL hnljB't 
sDkgL lnld6]8

lgdf{0f ko{j]If0f 27-Jan-21 ;DkGg 
ePsf]

( s':df–nf]j/ df]bL–Go' df]lb !#@ s]=le= 
k|;f/0f nfOg

g]kfn ljB't k|lws/0f k|f/lDes jftfj/0fLo 
kl/If]0f

16-Aug-22 ;DkGg 
ePsf]

 @! ;'gdfO{– /fhb'jfnL /f]8 6g]
n cfof]hgf

SjfnLl6 l/;r{ P08 l8lenkd]
G6 ;]G6/

l86]n l8hfO{g ;DkGg ePsf]

 @@ sf7df8f}F EofnL 6«fGldzg 
l;:6d PS:kfG;g cfof]hgf 
-Kofs]h æO{Æ_ ag]kf 
!#@÷!! s]=eL= ;j:6];g

sf7df8f}F EofnL 6«fGldzg 
l;:6d PS:kfG;g cfof]hgf 
-Kofs]h æO{Æ_ ag]kf !#@÷!! 
s]=eL= ;j:6];g

df6f] cg';Gwfg sfo{ ;DkGg ePsf]

 @# a]nL la|h b'wsf]zL hnljB't sDkgL 
lnld6]8

l86]n l8hfO{g ;DkGg ePsf]

 @$ sf7df8f}F EofnL 6«fGldzg 
l;:6d PS:kfG;g cfof]hgf 
-Kofs]h æO{Æ_ uf]n9'Ëf 
!#@÷!! s]=eL= ;j:6];g

sf7df8f}F EofnL 6«fG;ldzg 
l;:6d PS:kfG;g cfof]
hgf -Kofs]h æO{Æ_ uf]n9'Ëf 
!#@÷!! s]=eL= ;j:6];g

df6f] cg';Gwfg sfo{ ;DkGg ePsf]

 @% vfg]kfgL cfk'tL{ cfof]
hgf -nfkd8fF8f vfg]kfgL 
cfk'tL{ cfof]hgf_

b'wsf]zL hnljB't sDkgL 
lnld6]8

O{g6]s, kfO{k nfO{g tyf l/he{/ 6\ofª\s 
sf] l86]n l8hfO{g tyf nfut cg'dfg

;DkGg ePsf]

 @^ Ogef]n'G6/L k'gjf{; of]hgf b'wsf]zL hnljB't sDkgL 
lnld6]8

Sof8:6«n cWoog ;DkGg ePsf]

 @& j]i6 ;]tL hnljB't cfof]hgf  Pg=Pr=kL=;L= O{lG8of l/he{/ tyf l/e/ qmz–;]S;g ;e]{ ;DkGg ePsf]
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!) O{v'jf vf]nf hnljB't cfof]hgf  ck/ c?0f hnljB't 
sDkgL lnld6]8

sfof{Gjogsf] tof/L 
ug]{ sfo{

22-Aug-22 hf/L /x]sf]

!! df]lb vf]nf hnljB't cfof]hgf  g]kfn ljB't k|lws/0f cof]hgfsf] 
k'g:yf{kgf tyf 
cfw'lglss/0f

1-Dec-22 hf/L /x]sf]

!# :ofpn] ;fFkm]au/ !#@ s]=eL= k|;f/0f 
nfOg

g]kfn ljB't k|lws/0f lj:t[t ;DefAotf 
cWoog

10-Mar-23 ;DkGg 
ePsf]

!$ g]kfn ljB't k|lws/0f cfjfl;o ejg g]kfn ljB't k|lws/0f lgdf{0f ko{j]If0f 10-Mar-23 hf/L /x]sf]

!% klZrd ;]tL -jgn]s_ – bf]bf]wf/f $)) 
s]=eL= ljB't k|;f/0f nfOg cfof]hgf

/fli6«o k|;f/0f lu|8 
sDkgL lnld68

k|f/lDes jftfj/0fLo 
kl/If]0f

11-Jul-23 hf/L /x]sf]

cf=j= @)*)÷)*! df ePsf ;Demf}tfx? 

!^ uN5L–/ftfd6] @@) s]=eL= k|;f/0f 
nfOg cfof]hgf

g]kfn ljB't k|lws/0f, 
6«flGdzg l8/]S6f]/]6

df6f] cg';Gwfg sfo{ 27-Jul-23 ;DkGg 
ePsf]

!& klAns kx'Fr ;8s tyf klSs k'n b'wsf]zL hnljB't 
sDkgL lnld6]8

l86]n l8hfO{g 10-Sep-23 ;DkGg 
ePsf]

!* ;'gdfO{– /fhb'jfnL /f]8 6g]n 
cfof]hgf

SjfnLl6 l/;r{ P08 
8]enkd]G6 ;]G6/

l86]n l8hfO{g 12-Oct-23 ;DkGg 
ePsf]

!( sf7df8f}F EofnL 6«fGldzg l;:6d 
PS:kfG;g cfof]hgf -Kos]h æO{Æ_ 
ag]kf !#@÷!! s]=eL= ;j:6];g

sf7df8f}F EofnL 
6«fG;ldzg l;:6d 
PS:kfG;g 
cfof]hgf -Kos]h æO{Æ_ 
ag]kf !#@÷!! s]=eL= 
;j:6];g

df6f] cg';Gwfg sfo{ 30-Nov-23 ;DkGg 
ePsf]

@) a]nL la|h b'wsf]zL hnljB't 
sDkgL lnld6]8

l86]n l8hfO{g 24-Dec-23 ;DkGg 
ePsf]

 @! klAns kx'Fr ;8s -PAR 2 and PAR 7_ b'wsf]zL hnljB't 
sDkgL lnld6]8

k|f/lDes jftfj/0fLo 
kl/If]0f

20-Feb-24 hf/L /x]sf]

@@ sf7df8f}F EofnL 6«fG;ldzg l;:6d 
PS:kfG;g cfof]hgf -Kos]h æO{Æ_ 
uf]n9'Ëf !#@÷!! s]=eL= ;j:6];g

sf7df8f}F EofnL 
6«fG;ldzg l;:6d 
PS:kfG;g cfof]hgf 
-Kos]h æO{Æ_ uf]n9'Ëf 
!#@÷!! s]=eL= 
;j:6];g

df6f] cg';Gwfg sfo{ 4-Mar-24 ;DkGg 
ePsf]

 @# vfg]kfgL cfk'tL{ cfof]hgf -nfkd8fF8f 
vfg]kfgL cfk'tL{ cfof]hgf_

b'wsf]zL hnljB't 
sDkgL lnld6]8

O{g6]s, kfO{k nfO{g 
tyf l/he{/ 6\ofª\s 
sf] l86]n l8hfO{g tyf 
nfut cg'dfg

13-Mar-24 ;DkGg 
ePsf]

 @$ Ogef]n'G6/L k'gjf{; of]hgf b'wsf]zL hnljB't 
sDkgL lnld6]8

Sof8:6«n cWoog 7-May-24 ;DkGg 
ePsf]

 @% u08s–g]kfnu~h k|;f/0f nfOg 
cfof]hgf

xO{ef]N6]h ljB't 
lasf; ljefu

l86]n O{lGhlgol/Ë 
l8hfO{g

13-May-24 hf/L /x]sf]
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 @^ j]i6 ;]tL hnljB't cfof]hgf  Pg=Pr=kL=;L= O{lG8of 20-Jun-24 ;DkGg ePsf]

cf=j= @)*)÷)*! df ePsf ;Demf}tfx? 

 @& 8\ofd sg]lS6ª /f]8, ljB't u[x 
sg]lS6ª /f]8 tyf k'n

b'wsf]zL hnljB't 
sDkgL lnld6]8

l86]n l8hfO{g 8-Aug-24 hf/L /x]sf]

 @* g]kfn ljB't k|lws/0f sfof{no ;x 
Joj;fO{s ejg

g]kfn  ljB't 
k|flws/0f

l86]n l8hfO{g 9-Aug-24 hf/L /x]sf]

 @( tLglkkn] @@)÷!#@÷^^÷!! s]=eL= 
;j:6]zg

g]kfn  ljB't 
k|flws/0f 
(Okahrpauwa 
Teenpiple 220 kV 
TL and Substation 
Project)

e"ld ljsf; 
cWoog tyf BoQ 
kmOgnfOh]zg

9-Sep-24 hf/L /x]sf]

#) uN5L–/ftfd6] @@) s]=eL= k|;f/0f 
nfOg cfof]hgf

g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0f lgdf{0f ko{j]If0f 23-Sep-24 hf/L /x]sf]

#! g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0f cfjfl;o ejg g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0f df6f] cg';Gwfg sfo{ 25-Oct-24 hf/L /x]sf]
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97,535,267 

115,052,365 

136,888,246 

163,745,403 

228,680,603 

2076/077 2077/078 2078/079 2079/080 2080/081

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Book Value per Share and Earning per Share

Total Revenue (In NPR)

Quick Assets

Net Worth (in NPR)

Total Expenses (in NPR)

Current Ratio

95,063,288 
102,398,647 

92,510,512 

120,312,575 
115,167,854 

2076/077 2077/078 2078/079 2079/080 2080/081

114,763,719 

125,261,261 124,673,662 

160,169,959 156,958,939 

2076/077 2077/078 2078/079 2079/080 2080/081

 6.07  
 7.16  

 10.18  
 11.31  

 28.67  

2076/077 2077/078 2078/079 2079/080 2080/081

180.32 

212.71 

253.07 

302.73 

256.22 

23.21 32.39 40.37 49.65 40.35 

2076/077 2077/078 2078/079 2079/080 2080/081

 5.00  
 6.42  

 9.46  
 10.65  

 27.41  

2076/077 2077/078 2078/079 2079/080 2080/081

Earning Per Share Book Value Per Share
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ChesCo is a fast-growing and active organization. Over the 
years, we have steadily expanded our reach and improved our 
capabilities. This growth reflects not only our past success but 
also our dedication to meeting the increasing demand for our 
services. We continue to invest in our operations, infrastructure, 
and team to keep up with this rising demand. Our strong finan-
cial performance and growing market presence show our po-
tential for further growth.

Strategic Investment in CapEx and OpEx
Our investment plan is built on a carefully designed strategy 
for Capital Expenditure (CapEx) and Operating Expenditure 
(OpEx). This approach reflects the company’s commitment to 
sound financial management, ensuring resources are effective-
ly allocated to priority areas that foster growth and long-term 
sustainability.

Areas of Strategic Investment
1. Equipment, Technology and Innovation
ChesCo aims to remain at the forefront of the energy and in-
frastructure sector by embracing cutting-edge technologies. 
Investments in tools such as Geographic Information Systems 
(GIS), LiDAR, and drone surveys enable precise and efficient 
project execution. Furthermore, ChesCo prioritizes research 
and development (R&D) in renewable energy technologies and 
automation, ensuring continuous innovation and adaptability 
in an evolving industry.

A significant portion of our capex is directed towards acquir-
ing state-of-the-art equipment and cutting-edge software so-
lutions. These investments enhance our operational efficiency, 
reduce costs, and enhance our competitive edge within the in-
dustries we serve. Moreover, they also allow us to provide high-
er-quality services to our clients, leading to increased customer 
satisfaction and revenue generation.

2. Capacity Building and Infrastructure Development: 
 Building a skilled and dynamic workforce is central to ChesCo’s 
strategic vision. By offering regular training programs, pro-
fessional development opportunities, and hiring top talent, 
ChesCo strengthens its human resource capabilities. Simulta-
neously, the company invests in upgrading operational facili-
ties, acquiring modern tools, and establishing regional offices, 
which enhance efficiency and expand its operational footprint 
in key markets.

3. Market Diversification and Renewable Energy Expansion: 
To secure long-term growth, ChesCo focuses on diversifying its 
project portfolio and expanding into new markets. This includes 
investing in renewable energy sectors such as solar, wind, and 

hybrid systems to complement its expertise in hydropower. 
ChesCo also explores opportunities in untapped geographical 
regions and actively collaborates with international develop-
ers, financial institutions, and government agencies to execute 
large-scale infrastructure projects.

At ChesCo, growth is more than just a concept—it is a deliber-
ate and measurable strategy. Our focus on responsible invest-
ment and sustainable development drives our success, and 
we are committed to building on this momentum in the years 
ahead.

4. Sustainability and Community Engagement
Sustainability is at the core of ChesCo’s operations. The com-
pany integrates green practices into project designs and devel-
ops climate-resilient infrastructure to minimize environmental 
impact. 

INVESTMENT AND GROWTH
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 31-03-2081 

(15.07.2024) 

 31.03.2080  

(16.07.2023) 

 32.03.2079 

(16.07.2022) 

 32.03.2078 

(16.07.2021) 

 32.03.2077 

(16.07.2020) 

 Assets 

 Non Current Assets  18,737,635  14,939,689  15,216,741  17,587,930  21,412,399 

 Intangible  Assets  291,179  388,239  -    -    -   

 Property, Plant & Equipment   17,895,421  13,975,286  14,614,126  16,877,593  21,412,399 

 Deferred Tax Assets  551,035  576,164  602,616  710,336  -   

 Current Assets   217,531,502  163,238,904  134,925,110  116,169,653  91,643,324 

 Prepayments  451,316  234,836  292,493  134,442  436,621 

 Inventories   9,514,895  9,513,231  9,513,230  13,815,180  16,196,869 

 Advances, Deposits & Other Receivables  1,080,546  2,836,284  5,707,591  5,103,670  7,150,499 

 Trade Receivables  61,691,561  42,067,430  54,378,029  37,453,879  28,178,122 

 Cash & Cash Equivalents  144,793,184  108,587,123  65,033,766  59,662,482  39,681,212 

 Total Assets  236,269,137  178,178,593  150,141,852  133,757,583  113,055,723 

 Equity & Liabilities  

 Equity  228,680,603  163,745,403  136,888,246  115,077,760  97,535,268 

 Share Capital  89,250,000  54,090,000  54,090,000  54,090,000  54,090,000 

 Retained Earnings   139,430,603  109,655,403  82,798,246  60,987,760  43,445,268 

 Non Current Liabilities : 

 Deferred Tax Liability  -    -    -    417,301 

 Current Liabilities   7,588,534  14,433,190  13,253,606  18,679,823  15,103,155 

 Trade and Other Payables  3,407,850  7,977,697  822,899  9,593,340  1,669,503 

 Provisions  4,180,683  6,455,493  12,430,707  9,086,482  13,433,652 

 Total Equity & Liabilities  236,269,137  178,178,593  150,141,852  133,757,582  113,055,723 

Chilime Engineering & Services  Company Limited

Maharajgunj, Kathmandu

Summary of  Statement of Financial Position
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Chilime Engineering & Services  Company Limited

 Maharajgunj, Kathmandu

 Summary of Income Statement

 31-03-2081 

(15.07.2024) 

 31.03.2080  

(16.07.2023) 

 32.03.2079 

(16.07.2022) 

 31.03.2078 

(15.07.2021) 

 31.03.2077 

(15.07.2020) 

Income

Revenue from Consultancy  147,626,131.77  154,553,144  121,279,999  118,975,043  111,639,332 

Direct Expenses  77,529,332.34  89,523,355  71,243,125  80,640,435  75,270,506 

Gross Profit  70,096,799  65,029,790  50,036,874  38,334,608  36,368,826 

Indirect Expenses

Administrative Expenses  34,819,009.42  27,813,001  18,060,520  17,726,060  15,138,030 

Depreciation  2,819,512.3  2,976,219  3,206,867  4,032,152  4,654,752 

Operating Profit/ (Loss)  32,458,278  34,240,570  28,769,487  16,576,396  16,576,044 

Finance Income  9,030,623.44  5,612,815  3,365,630  2,177,296  3,124,387 

Other Income  302,183.94  4,000  28,033  4,108,922  -   

Profit / (Loss) before Tax and Bonus  41,791,085  39,857,385  32,163,149  22,862,614  19,700,431 

Employee Bonus  2,089,554.3  3,985,739  2,923,923  2,078,419  1,790,948 

Profit/ (Loss) before Tax  39,701,531  35,871,647  29,239,226  20,784,194  17,909,483 

Less: Tax  (9,926,330)  (9,014,490)  (7,403,345)  (3,241,702)  (5,357,694)

Current Tax  (9,901,200.7)  (8,988,038)  (7,321,020)  (4,369,339)  (5,461,599)

Deferred Tax Income (Expense)  (25,129.63)  (26,452)  (82,326)  1,127,637  103,905 

Net Profit/ (Loss) For the Year  29,775,200  26,857,157  21,835,881  17,542,492  12,551,789 
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REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPINION

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Chilime Engineering And Services Company Limited 

(“the Company”), which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024), the 

Statement of Profit or Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Change in Equity and the 

Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies 

and other explanatory information (hereafter referred to as “the financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid the 

financial statements presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company, as at Ashad 31, 2081 

(July 15, 2024), and its financial performance, changes in equity, cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary 

of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting 

Standards and comply with Company Act, 2063 and other prevailing laws.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our 

responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 

Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Handbook 

of The Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN), 

and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ICAN’s Handbook of The Code of Ethics 

for Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in the audit of 
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of the audit of financial 
statement as a whole, and in forming the auditor opinion thereon, and the auditor does not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters.

We have determined that there are no any key audit matters to communicate in our report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHILIME ENGINEERING AND SERVICES COMPANY LIMITED
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR'S REPORT THEREON

The Company’s Management is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Management report, Report of the Board of Directors and Chairman’s statement but does not include 
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other infor-
mation and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, con-
sider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the 
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that 
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial Statements in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting 

Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud and error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 

applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 

Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, wheth-

er due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 

guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 

from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticismthroughout the audit. We 

also:

n	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal con-
trol.

n	 Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

n	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclo-
sures made by management.

n	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
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attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant 

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding indepen-

dence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 

where applicable, related safeguards.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

Based on our examination, we would like to further report that:

i.	 Based on our examination, we would like to further report that:

i.	 We have obtained all the information and explanations which were considered necessary for the purpose for our audit.

ii.	 The Company has kept proper books of accounts as required by law, in so far as it appears from our examination of those 
books of account.

iii.	 The Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss (including other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of 
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows and attached Schedules dealt with by this report are in agreement with 
the books of account maintained by the Company except the compliance of section 101 of the Company Act 2063. 

iv.	 During our examination of the books of account of the Company, we have not come across the cases where the Board of Di-
rectors or any member thereof or any representative or any office holder or any employee of the Company has acted contrary 
to the provisions of law or caused loss or damage to the Company and

v.	 We have not come across any fraudulence in the accounts, based on our sample examination of the books

For, S. R. Pandey & Co. 

Chartered Accountants

Arun Raut, FCA Partner 

Place: Kathmandu 
Date: 2081/08/11
UDIN: 241201CA004855bpaA
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Statement of Financial Position
As on 31st Ashadh 2081 (15 July 2024)

Particulars
 Schedule 

2081.03.31 

(15.07.2024) 

2080.03.31  

 (16.07.2023)

 Assets    

 Non-Current Assets  18,737,635 14,939,689

 Property, Plant & Equipment 6  17,895,421 13,975,286

 Intangible Assets 7 291,179 388,239

Deferred Tax Asset 19  551,035               576,164

 Current Assets        217,531,502    163,238,904

 Prepayments 9  451,316             234,836 

 Inventories 8  9,514,895           9,513,230 

 Advances, Deposits & Other Receivables 11 1,080,546         2,836,284 

 Trade Receivables 12  61,691,561         42,067,430 

 Cash & Cash Equivalents 13  144,793,184       108,587,123 

 Total Assets 236,269,137                    178,178,593          

 Equity & Liabilities 

 Equity 228,680,603    163,745,403

 Share Capital 14  89,250,000         54,090,000 

 Retained Earnings 15  139,430,603       109,655,403 

Non-Current Liabilities 

 Deferred Tax Liability - -

Current Liabilities  7,588,534      14,433,190

 Trade and Other Payables 17  3,407,850           7,977,697 

 Provisions 20  4,180,683         6,455,493 

 Total Equity & Liabilities  236,269,137    178,178,593

Schedules Referred, Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts are integral parts of this Financial Statement.

Date: 2081/08/11
Address : Maharajgunj, Kathmandu

__________________ 
 (Subhash K. Mishra)
          Chairman

___________________
(Narayan Pd Acharya)

Director

__________________ 
(Dr Prashant Mandal)

Director

__________________ 
(Shanti Laxmi Shakya)

          Director

___________________
(Dhruba Raj Neupane)

Account Chief

___________________
(Prajesh Bikram Thapa)

Chief Executive Officer

As Per Our Report of Even Date

S.R Pandey & Co.,

Chartered Accountants

`___________

Arun Raut, FCA

Partner

NRS
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
From 1st Shrawan, 2080 to 31st Ashadh 2081

NRS

 Particulars
 Schedule 

F.Y 2080/081 

2023/2024)

F.Y 2079/080 

 ( 2022/2023)

Income    

Revenue from Consultancy 21  147,626,132 154,553,144

Direct Expenses 22 77,529,332 89,523,355

Gross Profit 70,096,799 65,029,790

Indirect Expenses  

Administrative Expenses 23 (34,819,009) (27,813,001) 

Depreciation                                                                                                                                         6 (2,722,453) (2,869,833)

Amortization                                                                      7 (97,060 ) (106,386)

Operating Profit/ (Loss) 32,458,278 34,240,570

Finance Income 24 9,030,623 5,612,815

Other Income 25 302,184 4,000

  Profit / (Loss) before Tax and Bonus 41,791,085 39,857,385

Employee Bonus 26 (2,089,554) (3,985,739)

Profit/ (Loss) before Tax  39,701,531 35,871,647

Less: Tax  (9,926,330) (9,014,490

Current Tax 19  (9,901,201) (8,988,038)

Deferred Tax Income (Expense) 19  (25,130)  (26,452)

Net Profit/ (Loss) For the Year 29,775,200 26,857,157

Earning Per share ( EPS) 27 40.35 49.65

Schedules  Referred, Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts are integral parts of this Financial Statement.

Date: 2081/08/11
Address : Maharajgunj, Kathmandu

__________________ 
 (Subhash K. Mishra)
          Chairman

___________________
(Narayan Pd Acharya)

Director

__________________ 
(Dr Prashant Mandal)

Director

__________________ 
(Shanti Laxmi Shakya)

          Director

___________________
(Dhruba Raj Neupane)

Account Chief

___________________
(Prajesh Bikram Thapa)

Chief Executive Officer

As Per Our Report of Even Date

S.R Pandey & Co.,

Chartered Accountants

`___________

Arun Raut, FCA

Partner



26

CHILIME ENGINEERING AND SERVICES COMPANY LTD.

Statement of Cash Flows
  For the year ended Ashadh 31, 2081(July 15, 2024)

NRs.

 Particulars 2081.03.31 

(15.07.2024)

2080.03.31  

 (16.07.2023)

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Net Profit for the Year 29,775,200 26,857,157

Adjustments

Tax Expenses 9,926,330 9,014,490 

Depreciation & Amortization 2,819,512 2,976,219 

Movements in Working Capital

(Increase)/Decrease in Prepayments (216,480) 57,657

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (1,665) - 

(Increase)/Decrease in Advances, Deposits and Others 1,755,738 (5,661,429)

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables (19,624,131) 12,310,600 

Increase/(Decrease) in Current liabilities (16,745,857) 724,282 

Total Adjustments (22,086,551) 19,421,818

Net Cash flow from Operating Activities (A) 7,688,649 46,278,975

Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment (6,642,587) (2,725,618)

Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (B) (6,642,587) (2,725,618)

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Increase/ (Decrease) in Capital 35,160,000 -

Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities (C) 35,160,000 -

Net Increase in Cash (A+B+C) 36,206,062 43,553,356

Cash at Beginning of the Year 108,587,122  65,033,766 

Cash at the End of the Fiscal Year 144,793,184  108,587,122

Schedules Referred, Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts are integral parts of this Financial Statement.

Date: 2081/08/11
Address : Maharajgunj, Kathmandu

__________________ 
 (Subhash K. Mishra)
          Chairman

___________________
(Narayan Pd Acharya)

Director

__________________ 
(Dr Prashant Mandal)

Director

__________________ 
(Shanti Laxmi Shakya)

          Director

___________________
(Dhruba Raj Neupane)

Account Chief

___________________
(Prajesh Bikram Thapa)

Chief Executive Officer

As Per Our Report of Even Date

S.R Pandey & Co.,

Chartered Accountants

`___________

Arun Raut, FCA

Partner
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended Ashadh 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

NRs.

Particulars Share Capital Reserve and Surplus Share Premium Total

Balance as on 1st Shrawan 2080 54,090,000 109,655,403 - 163,745,403

Addition 35,160,000 35,160,000

Profit / (Loss) during the year - 29,775,200 - 29,775,200

Balance as on 31 Ashadh 2081 89,250,000  139,430,603 - 228,680,603

NRs.

Particulars Share Capital Reserve and Surplus Share Premium Total

Balance as on 1st Shrawan 2079 54,090,000 82,798,246 - 136,888,246

Profit /(Loss) during the year - 26,857,157 - 26,857,157

Balance as on 31 Ashadh 2080 54,090,000 109,655,403 - 163,745,403

Schedules Referred, Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts are integral parts of this Financial Statement.

Date: 2081/08/11
Address : Maharajgunj, Kathmandu

__________________ 
 (Subhash K. Mishra)
          Chairman

___________________
(Narayan Pd Acharya)

Director

__________________ 
(Dr Prashant Mandal)

Director

__________________ 
(Shanti Laxmi Shakya)

          Director

___________________
(Dhruba Raj Neupane)

Account Chief

___________________
(Prajesh Bikram Thapa)

Chief Executive Officer

As Per Our Report of Even Date

S.R Pandey & Co.,

Chartered Accountants

___________

Arun Raut, FCA

Partner
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1. General Information of the 
Company
Chilime Engineering and Services Company Limited (ChesCo) 

is a Public Limited Company incorporated in the year 2016 

with the objective of giving complete technical solution for 

hydropower projects as well as other sector of development 

and develop the skilled manpower too. The Company has 

a Permanent Account Number (PAN) 604332882.  It has 

been registered with Office of Company Registrar with the 

Registered Office at Dhumbarahi-4, Kathmandu. The company 

is initiated and invested by Chilime Hydropower Company 

Limited (CHPCL) as pre-dominant share-holder and contains 

75% ownership (25% is apportioned for IPO). 

The scope of the Company is to provide consultancy services to 

activities relevant to the complete project life cycle, particularly, 

from project identifications to project completion plus the 

operations and operations and maintenance predominantly 

for hydropower project and other infrastructure works. At 

present, the   company is providing consultancy services 

related to Feasibility Study, Design Review and Construction 

Supervision of various Hydropower Projects, Transmission 

line Projects, Building Projects and also other infrastructure 

projects. Also, ChesCo is also involved in the detailed surveyr 

works, geological and geotechnical investigations work, 

Environmental Studies of the Projects. The major Clients are 

Chilime Hydropower Company Ltd., Nepal Electricity Authority, 

Rastriya Prasaran Grid Company Ltd., Tamakoshi V Hydropower 

Company Ltd. etc. ChesCo also organize and conduct training 

programs on the relevant subject through ChesCo RoKS 

(Roundtable on Knowledge Sharing). 

2. Statement of Compliance
The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance 

with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) to the extent 

applicable and as published by the Accounting Standards 

Board (ASB), Nepal and is recommended by the Board on its 

meeting held on 2081.08.11 for approval by shareholders in 

the Annual General Meeting (AGM).3. 

3. Basis of Preparation 
The Company has, for the preparation and presentation of 

Financial Statements, opted to adopt Nepal Financial Reporting 

Standards (NFRSs) from the erstwhile Nepal Accounting 

Standards (NASs) both pronounced by Accounting Standards 

Board (ASB) Nepal, except otherwise mentioned in the related 

notes. The Company opted for adoption of NFRS from Fiscal 

Year 2017/018 (2074/75).

NFRS conform, in material respect, to International Financial 

Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International 

Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

A number of new standards and amendments to the existing 

standards and interpretations have been issued by IASB after 

the pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates. 

Those only become applicable when ASB Nepal incorporates 

them within NFRS.

4. Reporting Period
The Company prepares Financial Statements in accordance 

with the Nepalese Financial Year (FY) using Nepalese Calendar. 

The corresponding dates for Gregorian calendar are as follows:

Particulars Nepalese 

Calendar Date / 

Period

Gregorian 

Calendar Date / 

Period

Primary Reporting 

Period

1 Shrawan 2080 

–31 Asadh 2081

16 July 2023 –15 

July 2023

Comparative Reporting 

Period

1 Shrawan 2079 

–31 Asadh 2080

16 July 2022 –16 

July 2023

5. Accounting Convention
The Financial Statements have been prepared on historical cost 

conventions except for certain financial elements that have 

been measured at fair value, wherever standard requires or 

allows such measurement. The fair values, wherever used, are 

discussed in relevant notes.

The Financial Statements are prepared on accrual and a going 

concern basis. The Company has a reasonable expectation that 

it has adequate resources to continue in operational existence 

for the foreseeable future.

Explanatory Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended on 
2081.03.31 (15.07.2024)
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6. Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) are those tangible assets 

used for operation of Direct Activities of the company as well for 

administrative purpose. These are recognized as PPEs, if and only 

if it is probable that future (i.e., for more than one accounting 

period) economic benefits associated with the items will flow to the 

Company; and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

PPEs are stated in the SFP at their cost less accumulated depreciation 

and accumulated impairment losses, if applicable. 

Cost
The initial cost of PPEs includes purchase price and directly 

attributable cost of bringing the asset to the location and 

conditions necessary for it to be capable of operating in the 

manner intended by management. Subsequent costs that do 

not qualify the recognition criteria under NAS 16 are expensed 

as and when incurred.

Depreciation
The management has estimated that depreciable amount of 

the assets is equivalent to the initial cost and thus the cost is 

systematically allocated based on the expected useful life of an 

asset. Items of Property, Plant and Equipment are depreciated in 

full in the year of acquisition. 

If an item of PPE consists of several significant components with 

different estimated useful lives and if the cost of each component can 

be measured reliably, those components are depreciated separately 

over their individual useful lives.

The Residual Values, Useful Lives and the Depreciation Methods 

of assets are reviewed at least annually, and if expectations differ 

from previous estimates, changes are made in the estimates and are 

accounted for as a change in accounting estimates in accordance with 

NAS 8.

Estimation of Useful Lives of Assets and 
Depreciation Method
Depreciation Methods have been selected considering the pattern 

of inflow of economic benefits to the organization. All the assets are 

depreciated using written down value (WDV) method. The details of 

Estimated Useful lives and Depreciation Method applied are as below:

Asset Class - Sub Class Depreciation Rate (%) Useful life (in Years) Depreciation Method applied

Office Equipment’s 25 4 WDV

Furniture and Fixtures 25 4 WDV

Vehicles 20 5 WDV

Machine & Equipment 15 6.67 WDV

Software - 5 SLM

Details of Property Plant and Equipment :
* Opening balance has been pulled from previous year

Particular
Cost Depreciation

Carrying Amount

(Net Book Value)

Opening* Addition Disposal Closing Opening* During the Year Closing Opening Closing

Office Equipment 3,326,403 235,884  3,562,287 831,601 53,213 884,813 2,494,802 2,677,474 

Furniture & 

Fixture
828,228 54,674  882,902 207,057 6,419 213,476 621,171 669,425 

Vehicle 2,511,954   2,511,954 502,391 -   502,391 2,009,564 2,009,564 

Misc. Assets 61,198 52,029  113,228 9,180 2,166 11,345 52,019 101,882 

Machine & 

Equipment
7,247,503 6,300,000  13,547,503 1,087,125 23,301 1,110,427 6,160,378 12,437,076

Total 13,975,286 6,642,587  -   20,617,874 2,637,354 85,099 2,722,453 11,337,933 17,895,421

Software 388,239 -    -   388,239 97,060 -   97,060 291,179 291,179 

Total 388,239 -   -   388,239 97,060 -   97,060 291,179 291,179 
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De-recognition

Assets that have been decommissioned or identified as 

damaged beyond economic repair or rendered useless due 

to obsolescence, are derecognized whenever identified. On 

disposal of an item of PPE or when no Economic Benefits 

are expected from its use or disposal, the Carrying Amount 

of an item is derecognized. The Gain or Loss arising from 

the disposal of an item of PPE is the difference between net 

disposal proceeds, if any, and the Carrying Amount of that item 

and is recognized in the SoPL.

Impairment of PPE

Impairment of an item of PPE is identified by comparing the 

Carrying Amount with its Recoverable Amount. If individual 

asset do not generate future cash flows independently of 

other assets, recoverability is assessed on the basis of Cash 

Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset can be allocated.

At each reporting date the Company assesses whether there 

is any indication that an asset may have been impaired. If such 

indication exists, the recoverable amount is determined. The 

Recoverable Amount of a CGU is determined at the higher 

of fair value less cost to sell on disposal and value-in-use. 

Generally Recoverable Amount is determined by means of 

discounted cash flows unless it can be determined on the basis 

of a market price. Cash Flow calculations are supported by past 

trend and external sources of information and discount rate is 

used to reflect the risk specific to the asset or CGU.

During the year there has been no indication of impairment 

since all the assets have been procured recently and there is no 

damages have been recognized in the PPE. 

7. Intangible Assets
The company is using the accounting software. It has been 

depreciated at 20% per annum on straight line method with the 

assumption of useful life of 5 years. 

8. Inventory
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value 

(NRV). Cost comprises of all costs of purchase, cost of conversion 

and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present 

location and condition.

NRs.

Particulars 2081.03.31

(15.07.2024)

2080.03.32

(16.07.2023)

Drilling accessories ( Inventories) 9,514,895 9,513,230

Total 9,514,895 9,513,230

The company procures consumable items like stationeries 

and other consumable items that are required in day-to-day 

operation of the company. These have been charged as 

expenses although some closing stock is remained at the year 

end. These items are also immaterial to present in the Financial 

Statement.

9. Prepayments
These are expenses paid for the period beyond the Financial 

Period covered by the Financial Statements. These will be 

charged as expenses in the respective period for which such 

expenses pertain to.

NRs.

Particulars 2081.03.31

(15.07.2024)

2080.03.31

(16.07.2023)

Prepaid Insurance 451,316 234,836

Total            451,316            234,836

10. Financial Assets
Financial Asset is any asset that is:

(a)  Cash

(b)  An equity instrument of another entity;

(c)  A contractual right:

i) 	 To receive cash or another financial asset from another 

entity; or

ii) 	 To exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with 

another entity under conditions that are potentially 

favorable to the entity; or

(d)  A contract that will or may be settled in the entity's own 

equity instruments and is:

(i) 	 a non-derivative for which the entity is or may be obliged 

to receive a variable number of the entity's own equity 

instruments; or

(ii)	 a derivative that will or may be settled other than by the 

exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another Financial 

Asset for a fixed number of the entity's own Equity 

Instruments. 

•	 Financial Assets are classified under four categories as 

required by NAS 39, namely, 

•	 Fair Value through SoPL,

•	 Held to Maturity, 

•	 Loans and Receivables and 

•	 Available for Sale. 
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FFinancial Assets of the Company comprise of Advances, 

Deposits and Other Receivables, Trade Receivables and Cash 

and Bank Balances. 

NFRS 9 introduces a model for classification and measurement 

of financial assets, which is based on the business model in 

which the financial assets are managed and the nature of its 

cash flows. Only the assets which are held under the business 

model of collecting the contractual cash flows, and whose 

cash flows are solely principal and interest may be recorded at 

amortized cost under NFRS 9. 

Further, NFRS 9 introduces an impairment model, under which 

expected credit losses are required to be recognized. Expected 

credit losses are to be measured based on reasonable and 

supportable historical, current, and forecasted information.

The company holds multiple contracts for which contractual 

revenue is collected as per the invoice raised while retention 

money is collected as per contract terms, with no defaults 

till date. Retention money which is collected later on as per 

contractual terms should be measured at amortized value at 

the reporting date. 

The company has not recognized loss allowance for ECL on 

financial assets which are subject to impairment under IFRS 

9 (including trade and retention receivables and contract 

assets). The amount of ECL is to be updated at each reporting 

date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. 

Lifetime ECL should represent the ECL that will result from all 

possible default events over the expected life of the relevant 

instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) should 

represent the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result 

from default events that are possible within 12 months after the 

reporting date. Assessment is to be done based on company 

past experience in collecting cash flows (Revenue from 

contract with Customers) from various contracts. Currently the 

company holds the following categories of financial assets:

11. Advances, Deposits and Other 
Receivables

These comprise Advances, Deposits and Prepayments and Other 

Receivables. Details are as given below:

NRs.

Particulars 2081.03.31 

(15.07.2024)

2080.03.31 

(16.07.2023)

Staff Advance 69,272 56,738

Palpa 220 Kv Substation - 2,579,546

Mahalaxmi Fuel ( Deposit ) 200,000 200,000

Performance Security        155,553.00 -

Bid security        424,000.00 -

VAT Receivable  231,721 -

Total 1,080,546 2,836,284

12. Trade Receivables
Trade Receivables are the amounts that are receivable from 

the customer on behalf of the services provided to them. The 

details of Trade Receivables are as follows:

NRs.

Particular 2081.03.31 

(15.07.2024)

2080.03.31 

(16.07.2023)

Sanjen Hydropower 

Company Ltd.
5,557,750 4,149,906

Income Receivable 14,803 5,072,648

Retention Amount 35,735,018 31,691,592

Chilime Jalbidhyut Com-

pany Ltd.
11,061,536 1,153,284

Upper Arun 2,650,987 -

Modi Khola 3,283,073 -

Chainpur Seti 1,840,000 -

Bajramadhi HEP 1,584,394 -

Total 61,691,561 42,067,430

i    WIP Income Receivables:  For the current year, it is the 

amount of Work in Progress receivable of Rs. 14,803 for the 

work that has been completed as well as billed. 

ii.	 Retention Amount Receivables: It is the amount that has 

been retained by following clients       
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NRs. 

SN Particulars 2081.03.31 (15.07.2024) 2080.03.31 (16.07.2023)

1 Sanjen Hydropower Company Ltd 14,469,773.34  12,744,771.00 

2 Nepal Electricity Authority Chainpur Seti 2,570,250.23    2,458,404.00 

3 Chilime Hydropower Company Ltd 13,746,543.23  12,282,545.00 

4 Betan Karnalli HEP 110,544.01       110,544.00 

5 Kathmandu Terai /Madesh Fast Track -    1,509,601.00 

6 Bajra Madi HEP 352,618.50       256,450.00 

7 Tamakoshi V Hydropower Company Ltd 560,254.51       400,413.00 

8 Modikhola Hydropower Project 179,093.24         90,341.00 

9 NEA Building 749,847.31       155,619.00 

10 Sunderijal Small Hydro 6,871.25          6,817.00 

11 Syaule Saphebagar TL 378,301.86       113,491.00 

12 Palpa 220 Kv substation -       179,584.00 

13 Puwa Khola HP 59,368.75         59,368.00 

14 Fewa Hydro Station 115,358.82       115,359.00 

15 Kusma Lower Modi TL 165,815.63         61,648.00 

16 Upper Arun Hydroelectric Project 1,608,582.71    1,146,583.00 

17 Rastriya Prasarad Grid Co.Ltd. (GPGCL) 310,950.00 -

18 Galchhi Ratmate 220kV TLP 239,625.00 -

19 Banepa132/11kV Substation 111,218.50 -

Total 35,735,018 31,691,538

13. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents include Deposit Account balances maintained with banks or Financial Institutions. These enable the Company to meet 

its short-term liquidity requirements.

The Carrying Amount of cash and cash equivalents approximates their fair value. They are readily convertible to known amount of cash and are 

subject to insignificant risk of change in value. 

These balances have been used as Cash and Cash Equivalents for the presentation of SCF as well.

Banks and financial institution in Nepal are closely regulated by the Nepal Rastra Bank. The Company closely assesses the risks of these instruments 

and there are no apparent indications of impairment of these balances.

The Company discourages the use and holding of cash balances therefore there are no cash balances as at the reporting dates.

The details of Cash and Cash Equivalents are given below:                                                                                         	            

Particulars 2081.03.31 

(15.07.2024)

2080.03.31 

(16.07.2023)

Short term Investment :

Everest bank FD -        10,500,000 

Investment bank FD - 13,000,000 

Muktinatth.-FD account       26,300,000.00 30,897,000 

Nabil Bank FD 30,000,000.00 -

NIC ASIA Bank FD 20,000,000.00 -

Sanima  Bank-FD 30,525,000.00 -

Total - A 106,825,000 54,397,000
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Particulars 2081.03.31 

(15.07.2024)

2080.03.31 

(16.07.2023)

Cash & Cash Equivalents :

Kumari Bank 672,465      366,294 

Sanima Bank Ltd. 36,796,494  52,919,308 

Muktinath Bikash Bank 499,225        904,521 

Total -B

Grand Total ( A+B) 144,793,184 108,587,123

i.	 Normal Deposits: The Normal Deposits are the amount laying the operational bank account. These may be interest bearing 

or non-interest-bearing accounts. The interest rate on the Normal Deposits keeps changing. So only interest amount has been 

disclosed. 

ii.	 Fixed Deposits: The company has kept three separate fixed deposit at Kumari Bank Limited, namely: -

•	 Rs.10500000/- on 07 February,2024 for the period of six month at 6.15% interest rate p.a. 

•	 Rs.7025000/- on 18 March,2024 for the period of six month at 6.25% interest rate p.a.	

•	 Rs.1,30,00,000/- on 28 March,2024 for the period of six month at 6.25% interest rate p.a.

The company has also kept Rs. 2,63,00,000/- in Muktinath Bikas bank Limited on 24 March,2024 for the period of Six Month at 6% 

interest rate p.a. The company has also kept Rs.3,00,00,000/- in Nabil Bank Limited on 29 January,2024 for the period of Six Month at 

6.6% interest rate p.a. and company also kept Rs.2,00,00,000/- in NIC Asia Bank Ltd. on 28 April,2024 for the period of 1 year at 6.7% 

interest rate p.a. The interest on the Fixed Deposit has been booked on periodic basis till the year end and has been included in the 

Bank Account.

14. Share Capital
All the share of the company is held by CHCL. The Capital Structure of the company is as follows:

NRs.

Particular Number of Shares Face Value Paid Up Value 2081.03.31 (15.07.2024) 2080.03.31 (16.07.2023)

Authorized Capital 1,200,000 100 - 120,000,000 120,000,000

Issued Capital 1,190,000 100 - 119,000,000 59,000,000

Paid Up Capital 892,500 100 100 89,250,000 54,090,000

Total ( Paid up) 89,250,000 54,090,000

15. Retained Earnings
The details of retained earnings are as given below:

NRs 

Particulars 2081.03.31 (15.07.2024) 2080.03.31 (16.07.2023)

Opening retained earnings 109,655,403 82,798,246 

Profit/(Loss) this year 29,775,200 26,857,157 

Total 139,430,603 109,655,403 

16. Financial Liabilities
A financial liability is any liability that is: 

A financial liability is any liability that is: 
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a) Contractual obligation:

(i)	 To deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; 

or 

(ii) 	 To exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with 

another entity under conditions that are potentially 

unfavorable to the entity; or 
b) A contract that will or may be settled in the entity’s own equity 

instruments and is: 

(i) 	 A non-derivative for which the entity is or may be obliged 

to deliver a variable number of the entity’s own equity 

instruments; or 

(ii) 	 A derivative that will or may be settled other than by the 

exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial 

asset for a fixed number of the entity’s own equity 

instruments.

 

Financial Liabilities under NFRS 9 are to be classified as Fair 

Value through SoPL and those held at Amortized Cost. All 

Financial Liabilities held by the Company are classified as 

Financial Liabilities held at amortized cost using effective 

interest rate. 

Financial liabilities held by the Company are non-interest 

bearing. The non-interest-bearing instruments’ carrying value 

represents the amortized cost.

Categories of financial liabilities are as follows:

17. Trade and Other Payables      
Trade and Other Payables mainly consist of amounts the Company 

owes to suppliers and government authority that have been invoiced 

or are accrued. These also include Taxes due in relation to the 

Company’s role as an Employer. These amounts have been initially 

recognized at cost and it is continued to be recognized at cost as it 

fairly represents the value to be paid since it does not include interest 

on payment. The details of Trade and Other Payables are as follows:

Particular 2081.03.31 

(15.07.2024)

2080.03.31 

(16.07.2023)

Audit Fee Payable 143,022 130,020 

Retention Amount (payable) 1,359,083 839,884 

Bid Security 20,000 20,000 

Staff Liabilities- others        100,166 128,525 

TDS ( Audit & Shantilal) 709,526 1,980 

Other Liabilities 1,075,306 6,857,137 

Social Security fund 1,027 152 

Total 3,407,850 7,977,697

18. Employee Benefits
The company is bound to provide the Employee Benefit in 

accordance with the bylaws of the company and as per the 

statutory requirements of the government. Accordingly, the 

company has provided the Provident Fund, Gratuity, Leave 

Encashment and Staff Bonus to its Employees. 

During the year the company has provisioned NRs 2,089,554 for 

the staff bonus against the profit earned by the company. It is 

the 5% amount profit before tax and bonus.

19. Income Tax
The Company has adopted the policy of accounting and 

reporting Tax related elements of Financial Statements in 

accordance with NAS 12 and it represents current Tax and 

deferred Tax for the year.

Current Tax
Current Tax payable (or recoverable) is based on the Taxable Profit 

for the year. Taxable Profit differs from the profit reported in the 

Statement of Profit or Loss, because some item of income or expense 

are Taxable or deductible in different years or may never be taxable or 

deductible.

During the year Rs  9,901,201 has been recognized as Tax expenses. 

Deferred Tax is the Tax expected to be payable or recoverable in future 

arising from: 

a. Temporary differences between the Carrying Amounts of Assets and 

Liabilities in the Financial Statements and the corresponding Tax Bases 

used in computation of Taxable Profit, 

b. Unused Tax Losses and/or 

c. Unused Tax Credits.

Deferred Tax Liabilities are generally recognized for all Taxable 
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Temporary differences and Deferred Tax Assets recognized to the extent that is probable that Taxable Profit will be available against which 

Deferred Tax Assets can be utilized.

The Tax rate used for Deferred Tax is the rate that has been enacted as on 31 Ashadh, 2081 (15 July 2024) (which is 25%).

NRs 

Particulars
Temporary Difference

FY 2080/81 (2023/024)

Difference 

FY 2079/78 (2022/023)
Tax Rate

Deferred Tax Amount 

FY 2080/83 (2023/024)

Deferred Tax Amount 

FY 2079/80 (2022/023)

Taxable/ (Deductible) 2,204,138 2,014,451 25%
                  551,035 

(Assets)
576,164 ( Assets)

From above table deferred tax Expenses amounts to NRs 25,130 in current year.  Last year deferred tax expenses amounted to NRs 26,452.

20. Provision
When the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, provisions are recognized only if it is probable that a 

transfer of Economic Benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made. The details 

of Provision are as follows:

NRs. 

Particular 2081.03.31 (15.07.2024) 2080.03.31 (16.07.2023)

Staff Bonus 2,089,554 3,985,739 

Current Tax Liability 9,901,201 8,988,038

Gratuity 2,014,452 2,014,452

Less: Advance Tax (9,824,523) (8,532,736)

Total 4,180,683 6,455,493 

21. Revenue
The company recognizes the Revenue based on the services provided to its customer. The Revenue includes two components i.e. one is the 

amount billed to customer and other the amount of services has been provided but yet to bill to the customer. The amount yet to be billed to 

customer has been put under work in progress. The details of Revenue are as follows:

Particular F.Y 2080/081 (2023/2024) F.Y 2079/080 (2022/2023)

Income from Consultancy Services      131,187,981 151,222,727

Receivable       16,438,151 3,330,417

Total 147,626,132          154,553,144 

During the current year the company is executing the following contracts. The details of Income generated from the  contracts are as follows

Particular
Income from 

Consultancy

Work in 

Progress

F.Y 2080/081 

(2023/2024)

F.Y 2079/080 

(2022/2023)

Sanjen(Upper) Hydroelectric Project (SJCL) 34,139,133 - 34,139,133 48,028,121

SN-3 HEP(Chilime JVL) 5,081,864 2,258,606 7,340,470 14,376,915

Budhigandaki Prok HEP(Chilime JVL) 5,236,048 2,708,300 7,944,347 24,578,881

Chumchet Syar Khola HEP (Chilime JVL ) 18,223,483 4632354.68 22855837.5 9,520,580

Betan Karnali Sanchayakarta Hydropower Co.Ltd (400k) - - - 1,105,437

Upper Arun Hydroelectric Limited  (IKHEP) 9,240,000 2,650,987 11,890,986.96 22,931,654

Bajramadi Hydroelectric Project           1,923,375.00 - 1,923,375 1,923,375

Tamakoshi V Hydroelectric Project 2,930,616 - 2,930,615.82 3,439,930

Madhya Bhotekoshi Jalavidhyut Company Limited 1,976,401 - 1,976,401.172 2,123,894

 Kushma Lower Modi-New Modi TL Project, IEE  949,469 - 949,468.75 949,469
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Particular
Income from 

Consultancy

Work in 

Progress

F.Y 2080/081 

(2023/2024)

F.Y 2079/080 

(2022/2023)

Kushma Lower Modi-New Modi TL Project RIEE 1,133,900 - 1,133,900 283,475

Fewa Hydropower Station (NEA) - - - 2,307,177

Modi Khola Hydropower Station -NEA  2,347,903 2,347,903.15 4,517,034

Puwa Khola Hydropower Station - NEA                           -   - - 1,187,375

Sundarijal Small Hydropower Station -NEA - - - 137,425

Palpa 220 KV Substation Project - - - 3,591,682

Syaule Saphebagar 132 KV TLP 5,296,226 - 5,296,226.25 2,269,811

Building & Physical Infrastructure Construction Project,NEA Building Project 11,884,564 - 11,884,564.36 3,112,381

Chilime Seti Hydropower Company Ltd. -  - 808,527

Chainpur Seti HEP 2,236,923 1,840,000 4,076,922.52 7,360,000

West -Seti (Banlek )-Dododhara 400kV TLP ( RPGCL) 6,219,000 - 6,219,000 -

Banepa 132/11 kV Substation 2,224,370 - 2,224,370 -

Chilime Plant 974,437 - 974,436.52 -

Dudhkoshi JVL -Public access road (Contract -1) 5,281,500 - 5,281,500 -

Dudhkoshi JVL -Bailey Bridge  (Contract -2) 968,835 - 968,835 -

Dudhkoshi JVL -IEE 1,460,813 - 1,460,812.5 -

Dudhkoshi JVL -Water Supply 476,665 - 476,664.65 -

Goldhunga 132/11 kV Substation 2,025,724 - 2,025,724.25 -

Gandak Nepalgunj TLP 6,512,138 - 6,512,137.5 -

Galchhi-Ratmate 220kV Transmission line Project 4,792,500 - 4,792,500 -

Total 131,187,982 16,438,151 147,626,132 154,553,144

The work in progress has been calculated using the best estimate on the actual services provided the customer certified by the management of 

the company. 

22. Direct Expenses
These are the expenses that are incurred on the field or project site including Salary and Other Benefits paid to employees to provide the services 

under the contract. The details of direct expenses are given below:

NRs. 

Particular F.Y 2080/081 (2023/2024) F.Y 2079/080(2022/2023)

Employee Provident Fund 74,588.10 72,416.45

Salary 15,268,410.29 12,424,135.66

Expert Fees 9,131,775.00 6,197,473.45

Wages 2,789,481.92 3,815,375.31

Social Security Fund 2,904,505.91 2,339,994.24

Festival Allowance - -

Gratuity - -

Allowances and Benefits 21,188,067.20 22,054,705.32

Staff Expenses -

Meeting Allowance/ Expenses 298,604.97  254,816.26 

Over Time Allowance 69,901.83  20,400.00 

Training & seminar -  661,760.25 

Organization development -  2,245,239.44 

Business Ralated Exp 80,026.35  1,366,937.42 

Travelling Allowance (TADA) 1,810,824.70  2,084,141.18 
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Particular F.Y 2080/081 (2023/2024) F.Y 2079/080(2022/2023)

Public Hearing Exp 1,025,675.33  1,013,269.90 

Consultancy Service Expenses 10229175.25  8,725,374.96 

Leave Allowance 874,307.13  478,560.97 

Equipment & Vehicle Hire Charge 3,244,092.12  3,820,806.24 

Repair and Maintenance 182,533

Fuel Expenses/Mobile & Lubricants 644,120.14  1,586,890.05 

Advertisement Expenses 130,350.00  379,110.00 

Newpaper & articles  37,774.86 

Printing and Stationery 783,592.81  838,299.56 

Staff Exp ( Chilime)   6,479,402.29 

Utility Expenses (Water & Electricity) 164,705.02  92,307.00 

Insurance Expenses (Employee, Property) 467,802.66  1,038,375.40 

Refreshment Expenses (Guest Felicitation) 207,774.72  397,209.97 

 Telephone/Internet Expenses & Dish Home Expenses  145,812.57  235,872.65 

Lab test Expenses 1,063,436  888,215.00 

Rent & rates 2,220,000  26,800,000

Office Expenses 1,627,942.91  2,652,529.66 

Other Services (Security Expenses) -  363,546.00 

Drilling Expenses 90,500.00  1,607,336.50 

Transporation & Communication Allowance 40,000.00  2,376,263.00 

Transportation and Travelling Expenses 820,969.41 -

 Total 77,529,332.34 89,523,354.69

23. Administrative Expenses
These expenses are the Indirect Expenses incurred on providing the support on execution of the contract and other office expenses. The details 

are given below:

NRs. 

Particulars F.Y 2080/081 (2023/2024) F.Y 2079/080 (2022/2023)

Allowances and Benefits 6,406,540 6,625,801

Salary 9,455,685 9,224,433

Employee Provident Fund/ SSF/ Gratuity 1,891,137 1,844,886

Staff Medical Exp 733,603 710,860

Transportation & Communication Allowances 62,500  151,928 

Expert Fees 268,200  468,200 

Advertisement Expenses 201,260  85,480 

Leave allowances 616,237  558,827 

Audit Related Expenses 150,938  133,498 

Bank Charges & Commission 9,986  7,245 

Donation /Grant 8,000  15,000 

Organization Development -  466,673 

Overtime Allowance 420,608  424,787 

Travelling Allowance (TADA) 66,500  659,936 

Transportation & Fuel Expenses 249,204  258,557 

House Rent 1,800,000  825,000 

Equipment & Vehicle Hire Charge 5,000  900,000 
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Particulars F.Y 2080/081 (2023/2024) F.Y 2079/080 (2022/2023)

Meeting Allowance 1,035,068  811,100 

Meeting Expense  293,029  182,541 

Refreshment Expenses (Guest Felicitation) 108,429  83,469 

Other Service (Security Expenses) 533,000  162,182 

Repair and Maintenance 745,494  670,910 

Office Expenses 489,610  320,769 

Printing and Stationery 350,290  194,825 

Tax paid -  231,932 

Insurance Expenses 213,581  674,124 

Training and Seminars 488,652  334,294 

Vehicle Registration and Renewable 59,900  59,200 

Wages 50,646  21,030 

Annual Event 97,199  432,558 

Drinking Water 75,812  75,015 

Electricity Expenses 106,472  97,080 

Employee Welfare 63,000.00  - 

Web Hosting   - 

 Telephone/Internet Expenses & Newspaper Article 149,335  228,023 

Consultancy Services Exp 1,000  280,000 

 Staff Related Expenses 6,544,218 -

 News Paper & Article 37,808 -

 Business Related Expenses 199,161 -

IPO Related Expenses 831,907 -

Total 34,819,009 27,813,001

24. Finance Income
Finance Income comprises of the Interest Income received or receivable from bank(s) on Term Deposits and interest received on Operational Bank 

Accounts. Between what has been received and the total amount to be received is shown as Receivables. The details of Interest Income are as below: 

Particular F.Y 2080/081 (2023/2024) F.Y 2079/080(2022/2023)

Normal Bank Interest          122,582.07 77,349

Interest on Fixed Deposit    8,908,041.40 5,535,466

Total   9,030,623.47 5,612,815

Normal bank interest is only recognized when it has been actually received. The interest on Fixed Deposit has been recognized on the time basis 

on the deposit amount Rs.2,542,352.53 at 6.25% & 6% till 16.07.2024 from Muktinath Bikash Bank Limited, Rs.1,429,082.83 at 9.436% till 24.02.2024 

from Kumari Bank Limited, Rs.    2,055,788.87 at 9.53% till 11.04.2024 from Nepal Investment Mega Bank Limited, Rs.948,385.27 at 9.55% till 

11.04.2024 from Everest Bank Limited, Rs 916,767.13 at 6.6% till 16.07.2024 from Nabil Bank Limited,       

Rs.2,90,027.40 at 6.7% till 16.07.2024 from NIC Asia Bank Limited and Rs. 725,637.37 at 6.25% & 6.15%till 16.07.2024 from Sanima Bank

25. Other Income
The details of other income are given below:

NRs. 

Particular F.Y 2080/081 (2023/2024) F.Y 2079/080 (2022/2023)

Other Income 302,184 4,000

Total 302,184 4,000
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26. Employee Bonus
During the year the company has allocated 5% bonus a sum of 2,089,554  on account of based on the profit before tax and bonus 

of F.Y 2080/081.27. 

27. Earnings Per Share
Earnings Per Share have been disclosed on the face of ‘Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income’ in accordance with the NAS 

33. The detailed calculation of EPS is given below:

NRs. 

Particular F.Y 2080/81 (2023/2024) F.Y 2079/80 (2022/2023)

Net Profit for the Year 29,775,200 26,857,157

Weighted Average Number of Share (Face Value of Rs. 100) 892,500 540,900

Basic EPS 33.36 49.65

 Weighted EPS 40.35 49.65

28. Dividend
The board of directors has proposed for 33.613 % cash dividend on paid up capital as on Asadh end 2081 which amounts to 3 Crore including the 

tax  to be paid by the shareholders.  

29. Related Parties
The transactions with the related parties are given below:

Related Party Relation
Nature of 

Transaction

Total Transaction Outstanding 

AmountOpening Dr. Amount Cr. Amount

Chilime Hydropower Com-

pany Limited
Holding Company Share Capital 54,090,000       35,160,000 89,250,000

Sanjen Hydropower Com-

pany Limited

Sister Concern (Sub-

sidiary of CHCL)

Normal Business 

Transaction
4,307,651 (Cr.) 34,139,133 28,863,017         5,276,116.67 

Chumchet SyarKhola HEP
Chilime JVL

Normal Business 

Transaction
- 22,855,837 8,246,103         9,977,379 

Seti Nadi-3
Chilime JVL

Normal Business 

Transaction
- 7,340,469 5,081,863         2,258,606 

Budhi Gandaki HEP
Chilime JVL

Normal Business 

Transaction
- 7,944,347 1,453,686         3,782,360 

Chilime Rehabilitation
Chilime JVL

Normal Business 

Transaction
- - - -

Betan Karnali Sanchayakarta 

Hydropower Co.Ltd (IEE)
Betan Karnali JVl

Normal Business 

Transaction
- - - -

Betan Karnali Sanchayakarta 

Hydropower Co.Ltd (400k)

Normal Business 

Transaction
- - - -

Chilime Hydropower Plant 

(Landslide Mitigation)
Chilime JVL

Normal Business 

Transaction
- - - - 

Bajramadi Hydroelectric 

Project
Bajra Madi HEP

Normal Business 

Transaction
- 1,923,375          1,923,375 

Tamakoshi V Hydroelectric 

Project
Tamakoshi V JVL

Normal Business 

Transaction
266,214 (Cr.) 2,930,615 2,930,615 -

Madhya Bhotekoshi Jalavid-

hyut Company Limited

Sister Concern (Sub-

sidiary of CHCL)

Normal Business 

Transaction
353,982 (Cr.) 1,976,401 1,976,401



40

CHILIME ENGINEERING AND SERVICES COMPANY LTD.

Related Party Relation
Nature of 

Transaction

Total Transaction Outstanding 

AmountOpening Dr. Amount Cr. Amount

Kushma Lower Modi-New 

Modi TL Project, IEE
NEA

Normal Business 

Transaction
 949,468 949,468 -

Kushma Lower Modi-New 

Modi TL Project RIEE
NEA

Normal Business 

Transaction
- 1,133,900 1,133,900 -

Fewa Hydropower Station 

(NEA)
NEA

Normal Business 

Transaction
- - - - 

Modi Khola Hydropower 

Station -NEA
NEA

Normal Business 

Transaction
2,710,220 (dr.) 2,347,903 - 2,347,903

Puwa Khola Hydropower 

Station - NEA
NEA

Normal Business 

Transaction
- - - - 

Sundarijal Small Hydropower 

Station -NEA
NEA

Normal Business 

Transaction
- - - - 

Palpa 220 KV Substation 

Project
NEA

Normal Business 

Transaction
- - - - 

Syaule Saphebagar 132 KV 

TLP
NEA

Normal Business 

Transaction
- 5,296,226 5,296,226 -

Building & Physical Infra-

structure Construction 

Project,NEA Building Project

NEA
Normal Business 

Transaction
- 11,884,564 11,884,564 -

Chilime Seti Hydropower 

Company Ltd.

Sister Concern (Sub-

sidiary of CHCL)

Normal Business 

Transaction
- - - -

Chainpur Seti HEP
NEA

Normal Business 

Transaction
- 4,076,922 2,236,922         1,840,000 

Ikhuwa Khola HEP Upper Arun Hydro-

electric Limited

Normal Business 

Transaction
- 11,890,986 9,240,000 2,650,986

Galchhi-Ratmate 220kV 

Transmission line Project 
NEA

Normal Business 

Transaction
- 4,792,500 4,792,500                             -   

West -Seti (Banlek )-Dodod-

hara 400kV TLP ( RPGCL)
NEA

Normal Business 

Transaction
- 6,219,000 6,219,000                             -   

Banepa 132/11 kV Substation 
NEA

Normal Business 

Transaction
- 2,224,370 2,224,370                             -   

Chilime Plant 
Chilime JVL

Normal Business 

Transaction
- 974,436 -            974,436 

Dudhkoshi JVL -Public access 

road (Contract -1)
NEA

Normal Business 

Transaction
- 5,281,500 5,281,500                             -   

Dudhkoshi JVL -Bailey Bridge  

(Contract -2)
NEA

Normal Business 

Transaction
- 968,835 968,835                             -   

Dudhkoshi JVL -IEE
NEA

Normal Business 

Transaction
- 1,460,812 1,460,812                             -   

Dudhkoshi JVL -Water Sup-

ply 
NEA

Normal Business 

Transaction
- 476,664 476,664                             -   

Goldhunga 132/11 kV 

Substation 
NEA

Normal Business 

Transaction
- 2,025,724 2,025,724                             -   

Gandak Nepalgunj TLP
NEA

Normal Business 

Transaction
- 6,512,137 6,512,137                             -   
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Key Managerial Personnel Compensation
Name Designation Term/Period Benefits

 Mr Prajesh Bikram Thapa Chief Executive Officer 12 Months 31,38,197.00  

Director
Name Designation Meeting Allowances Other Allowances Total

Mr Subhash Kumar Mishra Chairman 76,500 30,000 106,500.00 

Mrs Shanti laxmi Shakya Member 44500 12500 57000.00

Dr Prashant Mandal Member 154000 30,000  184,000.00

Mr Narayan Prasad Acharya Member 191500 30,000 2,21,500.00

30. Operating Segment 
NFRS 8 Operating Segments requires particular classes of entities (essentially those with publicly traded securities) to disclose information about 

their operating segments, products and services, the geographical areas in which they operate, and their major customers. 

The company is providing single nature of services. However, it has been operating in difference geographical region under the separate project. 

The details are given below:

NRs.

Name 2081.03.31 (15.07.2024) 2080.03.31 (16.07.2023)

Income   

Sanjen (Upper) Hydroelectric Project 34,139,133 48,028,121

Budhi Gandaki Prok Hydroelectric Project 7,944,347 24,578,881

Seti Nadi-3 Hydroelectric Project 7,340,470 14,376,915

Chumchet Syarkhola Hydroelectric Project 22,855,838 9,520,580

Karnali Sanchayakarta Hydropower Co.Ltd (IEE) Betan - 1,105,438

Bajramadi Hydroelectric Project 1,923,375 1,923,375

Tamakoshi V Hydroelectric Project 2,930,616 3,439,930

Upper Arun Hydroelectric Limited  (IKHEP) 11,890,987 3,846,750

Madhya Bhotekoshi Jalavidhyut Company Limited 1,976,401 3,439,930

 Kushma Lower Modi-New Modi TL Project, IEE (016K-LM-NM) 949,469 22,931,654

Kushma Lower Modi-New Modi TL Project RIEE (017K-LM-NM) 1,133,900 2,123,894

Fewa Hydropower Station (NEA)  949,469

Modi Khola Hydropower Station -NEA 2,347,903 283,475

Puwa Khola Hydropower Station – NEA - 2,883,971

Sundarijal Small Hydropower Station -NEA - 4,517,034

Palpa 220 KV Substation Project - 1,187,375

Galchhi-Ratmate 220kV Transmission line Project 4,792,500 -

Syaule Saphebagar 132 KV TLP 5,296,226 274,850

Building & Physical Infrastructure Construction Project,NEA Building Project 11,884,564 3,591,683

Chilime Seti Hydropower Company Ltd. - 2,269,811

Chainpur Seti HEP (NEA) 4,076,923 7,360,000

West -Seti (Banlek )-Dododhara 400kV TLP ( RPGCL) 6,219,000 -

Palpa 220kV Transmission Line Project - -

Banepa 132/11 kV Substation 2,224,370 -

Chilime Plant 974,437 -

Dudhkoshi JVL -Public access road (Contract -1) 5,281,500 -
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Name 2081.03.31 (15.07.2024) 2080.03.31 (16.07.2023)

Dudhkoshi JVL -Bailey Bridge  (Contract -2) 968,835 -

Dudhkoshi JVL -IEE 1,460,813 -

Dudhkoshi JVL -Water Supply 476,665 -

Goldhunga 132/11 kV Substation 2,025,724 -

Gandak Nepalgunj TLP 6,512,138 -

Direct Expenses -

Sanjen (Upper) Hydroelectric Project 29,174,795 33,080,163

Budhi Gandaki Prok Hydroelectric Project 6,448,041 14,964,993

Seti Nadi-3 Hydroelectric Project 1,879,941 5,619,712

Chumchet Syarkhola Hydroelectric Project 5,570,716 6,610,913

Chilime Hydropower Plant 609,488 177,104

Fewa Hydropower Station (NEA) - 352,500

Betan Karnali Sanchayakarta Hydropower Co.Ltd - 434,537

Kathmandu -Terai/Madesh Expressway (KTFT) - -

Bajramadi Hydroelectric Project 52,366 -

Tamakoshi V Hydroelectric Project 1,402,942 1,888,096

 Kushma Lower Modi -New Modi 132 Kv Tl (Nea) 310,708 1,031,331

Palpa 220 Kv Substation Project - 1,784,493

Modi Khola Hydropower Station 383,871 354,523

NTC Project - 406,839

Puwa Khola  Hp Station - 544,803

Chainpur Seti Hep 735,500 7,732,437

Syaule-Saphebagar TL Project 6,465,896 743,476

Corporate Office 34,819,009 27,813,000

Ikhuwakhola Hep 2,015,268 9,963,745

Chatara Hydropower Plant - 66,082

Madhya Bhotekoshi JVL 1,250,333 1,219,500

Betan Karnali Hep - 434,537

NEA Building (BPICP) 9,428,619 2,548,107

Banepa 132/11kv Substation 989,087 -

Dudhkoshi Jalavidhyut Co.Ltd.-Water Supply 382,000 -

Sunmai-Rajduwali Road Tunnel Project 21,600 -

Gandak Nepalgunj Tlp-Nea 371,337 -

Dudhkoshi Jalavidhyut Co.Ltd.-(Bailey Bridge) 133,368 -

Goldhunga 66/11kv Substation 520,073 -

 West-Seti Hydroelectric Project-Nhpc Ltd. 242,325 -

West-Seti Banlek-Dododhara 400kv Tl Project (RPGCL) 4,295,134 -

Chilime Seti Jvl 37,500 -

Dudhkoshi Jalavidhyut Co.Ltd.-Iee 221,817 -

Galchhi- Ratmata 220 Kv Tl Project 2,171,209 -

Dudhkoshi Jalavidhyut Co.Ltd. 1,939,771 -

Interim Reports
The company has no obligation for interim reporting and accordingly interim reports has not been published or reported. 
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31. Contingent Liabilities and 
Commitments
A contingent liability is identified as follows: 

(a) A possible obligation that arises from past events and 
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or 
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not 
wholly within the control of the entity; or 

(b) A present obligation that arises from past events but is not 
recognized because: 

(i)	I t is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; 
or 

(ii)	 The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with 
sufficient reliability. 

The company discloses contingent liabilities unless the 
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits is remote. 

There no any contingent liabilities or commitment of the 
company. 

32. Presentations
Presentation Currency
The Company operates within the jurisdiction of Nepal. Nepalese 
Rupees (NRs) is the presentation and functional currency of the 
Company. Accordingly, the Financial Statements are prepared and 
presented in Nepalese Rupees and rounded off to the nearest rupee.

Rearrangement and Reclassification
The figures for previous year are rearranged, reclassified and/
or restated wherever necessary for the purpose of facilitating 
comparison. Appropriate disclosures are made wherever necessary.

Statement of Financial Position
The elements of Statement of Financial Position (SFP) other than 
equity is presented in order of their liquidity by considering current 
and non-current nature which are further detailed in relevant 
sections. 

The presentation in the Financial Statement of the SFP differentiates 
between current and non-current assets and liabilities. Assets and 
liabilities are classified as current if they are expected to be realized or 
settled within one year. Deferred Tax assets and liabilities are presented 
as non-current items. 

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
The elements of Statement of Profit or Loss (SoPL) and Other 
Comprehensive Income (OCI) have been prepared using classification ‘by 

function’ method. The details of revenue, expenses, gains and/ or losses 
have been disclosed in the relevant section of notes to the Financial 
Statement.

Statement of Cash Flows
The Statement of Cash Flows (SCF) has been prepared using indirect 
method and the activities have been grouped under three major 
categories (Cash flows from operating activities, Cash flows from 
investing activities and Cash flows from financing activities) in 
accordance with NAS 07.

Statements of Changes in Equity
The Statement of Changes in Equity (SCE) has been prepared 
disclosing changes in each element of equity.

33. Accounting Policies and 
Accounting Estimates
Accounting Polices 
The Company, under NFRS, is required to apply Accounting 
Policies to most appropriately suit its circumstances and operating 
environment. The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity 
with NFRS requires management to make judgments, estimates and 
assumptions in respect of the application of Accounting Policies and 
the reported amounts of Assets, Liabilities, Income and Expenses.

Specific Accounting Policies have been included in the relevant notes 
for each item of the Financial Statements. The effect and nature of 
changes, if any, have been disclosed. 

Accounting Estimates
The preparation of Financial Statements in line with NFRS requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and 

liabilities at the date of Financial Statements and the reported 
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. 

Management has applied estimation in preparing and presenting the 
Financial Statements. The estimates and the underlying assumptions 
are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revision to accounting estimates 
is recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised, if the 
revisions affect only that period; they are recognized in the period of 
revision and the future periods if the revisions affect both current and 
future periods.

Specific Accounting Estimates have been included in the relevant 

section of the notes wherever the estimates have been applied along 

with the nature and effect of changes of Accounting Estimates, if any.
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SANJEN UPPER  
HYDROELECTRIC PROJECT

Sanjen Jalavidhyut Company Limited has developed 

Sanjen (Upper) Hydroelectric Project of 14.8 MW capacity. 

The Project is located in Chilime VDC of Rasuwa District 

about 160 km north of Kathmandu. The Project scheme is 

of run-of-river type with daily peaking facility of 1 hour 10 

minutes. It yields an annual energy output of 82.44 GWh, 

harnessing the available gross head of 161.3 m. The design 

discharge of the project at exceedance of Q40 is 11.07 m3/s. 

ChesCo has conducted Construction Supervision of this 

project. Currently, the power is being generated from the 

plant and the generated electricity has been connected to 

the national grid. The commercial operation of the plant was 

commenced from October 8, 2023. 

PROJECTS

SANJEN  
HYDROELECTRIC PROJECT

In tandem with the Sanjen Upper Hydroelectric Project, Sanjen 

Jalavidhyut Company Limited is also developing the Sanjen 

Hydroelectric Project with a capacity of 42.5 MW. 

The project scheme is the cascade development of Sanjen Upper 

Hydroelectric Project so the water from the tailrace of upper scheme 

is directly utilized by the lower scheme. It generates annual energy 

of 241.865 GWh from the available gross head of 442 m. In the case 

of the design discharge, 0.50 m3/s discharge from Chhupchung 

Khola is added to the intake/forebay of the lower scheme, resulting 

in a design discharge of 11.57 m3/s.  ChesCo has conducted 

Construction Supervision of this project. Currently, the generated 

electricity is in testing phase and is connected to the national grid. 
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BUDHI GANDAKI PROK 
HYDROELECTRIC PROJECT 

Budhi Gandaki Prok Hydroelectric Project (BGPHEP) 

is located in Gorkha District of Gandaki Province. 

Chilime Jalavidhyut Company Limited (CJCL) has 

identified the project and has also secured the study 

license to conduct the Feasibility Study. BGPHEP 

is a Run-of-River (RoR) type project with a design 

discharge of 44.03 m3/s at Q46 with 208.31 m net 

head and 81 MW as the installed capacity of the 

plant. ChesCo has provided consulting services 

for the Feasibility Study, Environmental Impact 

Assessment (EIA) study, and preparation of Tender 

Documents. 

BUDHI GANDAKI PROK-1 
HYDROELECTRIC PROJECT

Budhi Gandaki Prok-1 Hydroelectric Project (BGP1HEP) 

is also located in Gorkha District of Gandaki Province. 

Chilime Jalavidhyut Company Limited (CJCL) has 

identified the project and has also acquired the study 

license to conduct the Feasibility Study. BGP1HEP is a 

Run-of-River (RoR) type project with proposed design 

discharge of 23.51 m3/s at Q46.5 with 454.71 m net 

head and 93 MW as the installed capacity of the plant. 

ChesCo is currently providing the consulting services 

for the Feasibility Study, EIA Study, and Preparation of 

Tender Documents for this project
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SETI NADI-3 
HYDROELECTRIC PROJECT

Seti Nadi-3 HEP (SN3HEP) is located in Jayprithivi 

Municipality of Bajhang District. Chilime Jalavidhyut 

Company Limited (CJCL) has identified the 

project and has also acquired the study license to 

conduct the Feasibility Study. SN3HEP is a Peaking 

Run of-River type project with proposed design 

Discharge 84.6 m3/s at Q35.20% with net head 

115.78 m and Installed Capacity 87 MW. 

ChesCo has undertaken the Feasibility Study, 

Environment Impact Assessment (EIA) Study and 

Preparation of Tender Documents Activities.

CHUMCHET SYAR KHOLA 
HYDROELECTRIC PROJECT

Chumchet Syar Khola Hydroelectric Project is a 

Run-of-River type Project located in Chumnubri 

Rural Municipality of Gorkha District. The gross 

head of the project is 382 m and the design 

discharge of 13.85 m3/sec. The Installed Capacity 

of the project is 45 MW with total energy of 253.10 

GWh. 

ChesCo is providing Consulting Services for 

Detailed Feasibility Study, Environment Impact 

Assessment (EIA) Study and preparation of EPC 

Tender Documents for the Project.
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CHAINPUR SETI 
HYDROELECTRIC PROJECT

Chainpur Seti Hydroelectric Project is a Peaking 

Run-of-River type hydropower located in Saipal 

Rural Municipality of Bajhang District. The 

installed capacity of the project is 210 MW. The 

gross head of the project is 496 m. The design 

discharge of the project is 50.68 m3/sec at 

Q36% of exceedance. The project generates 

1158.02 GWh of total annual energy. 

ChesCo has successfully provided the services 

for Review and Update the Feasibility Study 

and Preparation of Tender Documents for the 

Project.

BAJRA MADI  
HYDROPOWER PROJECT

Bajra Madi Hydropower Project is a 

Run-of-River Project located at Madi 

Rural Municipality, Kaski district, Gandaki 

Province. Promoted by Bajra Energy 

Ventures Private Limited, this project has 

an installed capacity of 24.88 MW and 

generates an annual energy of 141.86 

GWh. 

ChesCo is providing Consulting Services 

for the Detailed Design of the Project.
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IKHUWA KHOLA  
HYDROPOWER PROJECT

Ikhuwa Khola Hydropower Project is a Run-of-River 

type hydropower located in Makalu Rural Municipality 

of Sankhuwasabha District. The installed capacity of the 

project is 40 MW. The gross head of the project is 604.5 

m and the design discharge of the project is 8.03 m3/sec. 

ChesCo is providing services for construction planning 

of the project, Detail Design of the project road, Detailed 

design of the permanent camp, Complete Environment 

Impact Assessment (EIA) Study of the Project and 

preparation of tender documents.

MODI KHOLA  
HYDROPOWER PLANT

Modi Khola Hydropower Plant is located at 

Dimuwa in Parbat district approximately 46 km 

west of Pokhara City. It has installed capacity of 

14.8 MW and annual design generation of 91.0 

GWh. 

ChesCo is providing Consulting Services for 

Rehabilitation and Modernization of the plant.
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DUDHKOSHI STORAGE 
HYDROELECTRIC PROJECT

Dudhkoshi Storage Hydroelectric Project (DKSHEP), 

located on the Dudhkoshi River across Okhaldhunga, 

Khotang, and Solukhumbu Districts in Koshi Province, 

Nepal, is a major initiative with a capacity of 635 MW. 

ChesCo has completed the detailed design and cost 

estimates for Public Access Roads (PAR) and bridges 

over the Dudhkoshi River and detailed design of 

Lamidada Water Supply Project.  Additionally, ChesCo 

is providing services for environmental studies for PAR2 

and PAR7, and has completed the cadastral study for 

resettlement planning and also conducting Detailed 

Design of Dam Connecting Roads (DCR), Powerhouse 

Connecting Roads (PCR) and a permanent bridge

WEST SETI  
HYDROELECTRIC PROJECT

NHPC Limited is the largest hydropower development 

organization in India, with capabilities to undertake all 

the activities from conceptualization to commissioning of 

hydro projects. NHPC has also diversified in the field of Solar 

& Wind energy development. 

NHPC Limited is the Developer of the West Seti Hydroelectric 

Project (WSHEP), a Storage hydropower project located on 

Seti Nadi at Doti, Baitadi, Dadeldhura and Bajhang District in 

the Sudur Paschim province of Nepal. ChesCo has provided 

Consultancy Services for Hiring of Services for undertaking 

Reservoir Area Survey and River Cross-section Survey of 

Seti River and its tributaries/nallahs in the reservoir area for 

West Seti H.E. Project, Sudur Paschim Province, Nepal.
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WEST-SETI (BANLEK)-DODODHARA 
400 KV TRANSMISSION LINE PROJECT

West-Seti (Banlek)-Dododhara 400 kV Transmission Line Project 

is proposed to be constructed between proposed West Seti 

(Banlek) Substation at Shikhar Municipality of Doti district to the 

proposed Dododhara Substation at Bardagoria Rural Municipality 

of Kailali district by Rastriya Prasaran Grid Company Limited. The 

Project aims to build a 400kV double circuit transmission line that 

will serve to evacuate the power from national pride projects in 

the West Seti River basin like West Seti (750MW), Chainpur-Seti 

(210MW), Bajhang Upper Seti (80MW), Seti-3 (80MW) and others.

ChesCo has been entrusted with the responsibility of providing 

services for the Initial Environmental Examination (IEE), 

preparation of Cadastral Report, and Baseline Study Report for the 

Transmission Line Project.

GALCHHI-RATMATE 220 KV 
TRANSMISSION LINE PROJECT

A contract agreement has been made between the Transmission 

Directorate of Nepal Electricity Authority and ChesCo for the 

execution of soil investigation works for Galchhi-Ratmate 220 

kV Transmission Line Project. This project is situated within 

Nuwakot and Dhading Districts, commencing from Dhansar 

in Belkotgadhi Municipality-7, Nuwakot, and culminating at 

Biruwatar Jungle in Galchhi Rural Municipality-8, spanning a 

distance of approximately 8.5 kilometers.

ChesCo has completed Detailed Soil Investigations, encompassing 

both Geological and Geotechnical assessments, at twenty-nine 

tower locations and a substation. Additionally, ChesCo has been 

entrusted with the provision of Consulting Services for Construction 

Supervision of the project.
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SYAULE-SANFEBAGAR  
132 KV TRANSMISSION LINE PROJECT

The Syaule-Sanfebagar 132 kV Transmission Line Project 

spans Dadeldhura, Doti, and Achham districts in Sudur 

Paschim Province. It connects the Syaule 132/33 kV Substation 

in Dadeldhura to the proposed Bayalpata, Sanphebagar 

132/33/11 kV Substation in Achham. This project is spearheaded 

by the Transmission Directorate of NEA, with the primary goal 

of enhancing the quality and reliability of electricity supply in 

Achham, Doti, Bajhang, and Bajura districts. 

ChesCo has fulfilled the responsibility of conducting a Detailed 

Feasibility Study for the transmission line project.

KATHMANDU VALLEY TRANSMISSION 
SYSTEM EXPANSION PROJECT

As part of the Kathmandu Valley Transmission System 

Expansion Project under the Transmission Directorate of 

Nepal Electricity Authority (NEA), Chilime Engineering & 

Services Company Limited (ChesCo) conducted geotechnical 

investigations for two substations:

•	 Banepa 132/11 kV Substation (Package "E") Located in 

Banepa Municipality-5, Kavrepalanchowk, 

•	 Goldhunga 132/11 kV Substation (Package "A"), Situated 

in Tarkeshor Municipality, Kathmandu,

ChesCo has completed the soil investigations works for the 

projects. ChesCo’s comprehensive investigations provided 

critical insights for safe and efficient substation construction, 

supporting NEA’s efforts to enhance power transmission 

within the Kathmandu Valley.



54

CHILIME ENGINEERING AND SERVICES COMPANY LTD.

GANDAK-NEPALGUNJ 
TRANSMISSION LINE PROJECT

NEA has identified load centers in the Middle-West 

Terai region and the need to enhance transmission 

capacity and reinforce substations. Most load centers 

are within 6 to 40 km of the Gandak substation and the 

proposed 220 kV line. The 220 kV multi-circuit lines will 

serve as the backbone for future power transmission 

in the region, with the Gandak–Nepalgunj line 

spanning over 330 km along Hulaki Rajmarga. 

ChesCo is providing Consulting Services for Detailed 

Engineering Study for the project.

SUNMAI-RAJDUWALI  
ROAD TUNNEL

The Sunmai-Rajduwali Road Tunnel is planned to connect 

points on the Mechi Highway, improving traffic flow hindered 

by steep and rugged terrain, difficult geomorphology, unstable 

geological conditions, and limited road-widening options. 

Quality, Research and Development Center, Department of 

Roads, Chakupat, Lalitpur is responsible for development of 

the project. 

ChesCo-PNet-WELINK JV have conducted a complete feasibility 

study and design of road to determine the economic viability 

and technical feasibility of constructing this tunnel.
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NEPAL ELECTRICITY  
AUTHORITY BUILDING

Nepal Electricity Authority (NEA) was established on August 16, 1985 (Bhadra 

1, 2042) under the Nepal Electricity Authority Act. 1984. ChesCo is providing 

consulting services for following Building Projects of NEA.

Office Building 

NEA is constructing office buildings at Bhagwanpau and Lainchaur. For these 

buildings, ChesCo is providing Construction Supervision Services. Also, ChesCo 

has completed Geotechnical Investigation works for the building at Lainchaur.

Office Cum Commercial Building

NEA has a plethora of land all over Nepal, located at the major city areas. NEA 

intends to utilize these areas for optimum use by constructing office cum 

commercial building with built up area not less than 5000 Sqm and not more 

than 10000 Sqm, in all provinces of Nepal.

TAMAKOSHI-V  
HYDROELECTRIC PROJECT

Tamakoshi Company Limited, a sister company of Nepal Electricity 

Authority, is executing construction of Tamakoshi V Hydroelectric 

Project. This project is cascade project of Upper Tamakoshi 

Hydroelectric Project (456 MW). The permanent camp of the 

project is located in Bigu Rural Municipality, Dolakha District. 

ChesCo has completed the Consulting Services for Construction 

Management and Supervision of Permanent Camps of Tamakoshi 

V HEP.

TEENPIPLE  
220/132/66/11 KV SUBSTATION

The Teenpiple   substation   under Kathmandu   Valley Transmission   System 

Expansion   Project (Package   B) has been proposed   to be constructed in 

Teenpiple, Kathmandu. Basic survey and feasibility study have been carried 

out. The Land Development   Study and Bill of Quantity (BoQ) finalization   

should be carried out to construct substation and associated infrastructure.
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S. N. PROJECT CLIENT TASK

A. HYDROPOWER PROJECTS

01
Sanjen and Sanjen (Upper) Hydroelectric 

Projects 

Sanjen Jalavidhyut Company 

Limited
Construction Supervision

02 Budhi Gandaki Prok Hydroelectric Project Chilime Jalavidhyut Company Ltd. Feasibility Study, EPC Tender Documents and EIA

03 Seti Nadi -3 Hydroelectric Project Chilime Jalavidhyut Company Ltd. Feasibility Study, EPC Tender Documents and EIA

04
Chumchet Syar Khola Hydroelectric 

Project
Chilime Jalavidhyut Company Ltd. Feasibility Study, EPC Tender Documents and EIA

05 Chainpur Seti Hydroelectric Project Nepal Electricity Authority
Review of Feasibility Study and preparation of  EPC 

Tender Documents 

06 Bajra Madi Hydroelectric Project Bajra Energy Ventures Pvt. Ltd. Detailed Design

07 Ikhuwa Khola Hydropower Project Upper Arun Hydroelectric Limited

EIA, Detailed Design of Project Road, Detailed 

Design of Camp of Powerhouse area and Headworks 

area

08 Seti Phewa Hydropower Station Nepal Electricity Authority Rehabilitation

09 Chilime Hydropower Plant Chilime Jalavidhyut Company Ltd. Rehabilitation

10 Seti Phewa Hydropower Station Nepal Electricity Authority Rehabilitation

11 Modi Khola Hydropower Plant Nepal Electricity Authourity Rehabilittation and Modernization

12 Lipping Khola Hydropower Project

"NMB Bank Limited (Bank, Client) 

Him River Power Private Limited 

(Developer)"

Bill Verification Works

B. INFRASTRUCTURES

01 Tamakoshi-V Hydroelectric Project
Tamakoshi Jal Vidhyut Company 

Limited

Construction Supervision of Permanent Camp 

Facilities

02 NEA Building Project Nepal Electricity Authority Construction Supervision of NEA Building Project

03
 Public Access Road and Permanent 

Bridge 

Dudhkoshi Jalvidyut Company 

Limited
Detailed Survey, Design and Cost Estimate

04 Sunmai-Rajduwali Road Tunnel, Illam
Quality Research and Develop-

ment Center (QRDC), DoR
Feasibility Study and Detailed Design 

05 Baily Bridge at Headworks site of DKSHEP
Dudhkoshi Jalvidhyut Company 

Limited
Detailed Design 

06
Drinking Water Supply Project (Lamidada 

Water Supply Project)

Dudhkoshi Jalvidhyut Company 

Limited

Cost Estimate and Design of Intake, Pipeline and 

Reservior Tank

07
Involuntary Resettlement Plan for 

DKSHEP

Dudhkoshi Jalvidhyut Company 

Limited
Cadastral Study

08

Dam Connecting Road (DCR), Power-

house Connecting Road (PCR) and Bridge 

for DKJVCL

Dudhkoshi Jalvidhyut Company 

Limited
Detailed Design and Cost Estimate

09
Nepal Electricity Authority Office cum 

Commercial Building (BPICP)
Nepal Electricity Authority (NEA) Design 

LIST OF OUR PROJECTS
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10 Teenpiple 220/132/66/11 kV Substation

Okharpauwa Teenpiple 220 kV 

Transmission Line & Substation 

Project, NEA

Land Development Study and BoQ Finalization

11 Nepal Electricity Authority Building Nepal Electricity Authority (NEA) Soil Investigation Works

C. ENVIRONMENTAL STUDY

01
Betan Karnali Sanchayakarta Hydroelec-

tric Project 

Betan Karnali Sanchayakarta Hy-

dropower Company Limited
IEE of 33 KV TL for Construction Power

02
Betan Karnali Sanchayakarta Hydroelec-

tric Project 

Betan Karnali Sanchayakarta Hy-

dropower Company Limited
IEE of 400 KV TL for Power Evacuation

03
Kusma-Lower Modi-New 132 kV TL 

Project
Nepal Electricity Authority (NEA) IEE of Kusma-Lower Modi 132 kV TL Project

04
Kusma-Lower Modi-New 132 kV TL 

Project
Nepal Electricity Authority (NEA)

Revised IEE of Lower Modi-New Modi 132 kV TL 

Project

05
West-Seti (Banlek)-Dododhara 400 kV 

Transmission Line Project

Rastriya Prasaran Grid Company 

Limited (RPGCL)

IEE of West-Seti (Banlek)-Dododhara 400 kV TL 

Project

06 Public Access Road (PAR 2 and PAR 7)
Dudhkoshi Jalvidhyut Company 

Limited
IEE of PAR 2 and PAR 7 for DKJVCL

D.  GEOLOGICAL AND GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION

01 Chilime Hydropower Plant Chilime Jalavidhyut Company Ltd. Landslide Mitigation of Camp Area

02 Kathmandu-Terai/Madhesh Fast Track Nepal Army Geophysical and Geotechnical Studies

03 Puwa Khola Hydropower Station Nepal Electricity Authority (NEA) Slip effect study of Anchor Blocks

04 Sundarijal Small Hydropower Station Nepal Electricity Authority (NEA)

Rib Installation Support Methodology in Caving 

Section and Support Solution, Backfill Design and 

Supervision

05 Seti Nadi-3 Hydroelectric Project (87 MW)
Chilime Seti Hydropower Company 

Limited

Preparation of Tender Documents and Drawings for 

Test Adit Exploration of Powerhouse Access Tunnel

06 Palpa 220 kV Transmission Line Project Nepal Electricity Authority (NEA) Soil Investigation Works

07
Galchhi-Ratmate 220 kV Transmission 

Line Project 
Nepal Electricity Authority (NEA) Soil Investigation Works

08

Kathmandu Valley Transmission line 

Expansion Project (Package E)- Banepa 

132/11 kV Substation

Nepal Electricity Authority (NEA) 031KTMVTSEP-E-BS-G

09

Kathmandu Valley Transmission line Ex-

pansion Project (Package A)- Goldhunga 

132/11 kV Substation

Nepal Electricity Authority (NEA) 033KTMVTSEP-A-GS-G

10 Nepal Electricity Authority Building Nepal Electricity Authority (NEA) 043BPICP-G

E. TRANSMISSION LINE

01
Betan Karnali Sanchayakarta Hydroelec-

tric Project 

Betan Karnali Sanchayakarta Hy-

dropower Company Limited

Review and Update of Construction Power Report of 

33 kV Transmission Line

02
Syaule-Sanfebagae 132 kV Transmission 

Line Project
Nepal Electricity Authority (NEA) Detailed Feasibility Study

03
Gandak-Nepalgunj Transmission Line 

Project

High Voltage Electricity Develop-

ment Department
Detailed Feasibility Study

04
Galchhi-Ratmate 220 kV Transmission 

Line Project
Nepal Electricity Authority (NEA) Construction Supervision
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PHOTO GALLERY

  Drone-based LiDAR Survey   Environmental Study

  Geological & Geotechnical Investigation  Expert Visit

  Public-Consultation  Bathymetric Survey
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  Capacity Building
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   ChesCo RoKS (Roundtable on Knowledge Sharing)
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  Previous AGMs
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  Management Team and Project Focal Persons
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  Maharajgunj, Kathmandu, Nepal
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